Published for SISSA by 🖄 Springer

RECEIVED: February 29, 2024 ACCEPTED: April 5, 2024 PUBLISHED: May 2, 2024

On the limitations of non-geometric fluxes to realize dS vacua

David Prieto⁽⁾,^a Joan Quirant⁽⁾ and Pramod Shukla⁽⁾

^aInstitute for Theoretical Physics, Utrecht University, Princetonplein 5, 3584 CC Utrecht, The Netherlands

^bDepartment of Physics, Ben-Gurion University of the Negev, Be'er-Sheva 84105, Israel

^cDepartment of Physical Sciences, Bose Institute,

Unified Academic Campus, EN 80, Sector V, Bidhannagar, Kolkata 700091, India

E-mail: d.prietorodriguez@uu.nl, joanq@post.bgu.ac.il, pshukla@jcbose.ac.in

ABSTRACT: In this paper, we perform a systematic and analytical exploration of de Sitter conditions in type IIA compactifications with (non-)geometric fluxes along with the standard NS-NS and RR p-form fluxes. Exploiting the fact that the F-term scalar potential can be written as a bilinear form, we start by studying the most generic case. We find four conditions that the scalar fields and fluxes must satisfy to achieve de Sitter vacua. Particularizing to different configurations, we recover and extend previous results in the literature. We then impose an Ansatz in which the F-terms are proportional to the respective Kähler derivatives. In this set-up we are able to derive additional constraints and to classify the possible dS no-go scenarios in terms of eight axionic fluxes. Individually considering that any of these fluxes can be vanishing or non-vanishing leads to a total of 256 flux configurations. We find that 227 of these 256 possibilities result in a dS no-go scenario. The remaining 29 flux configurations, a priori, do not lead to dS no-go cases and would deserve further investigation.

KEYWORDS: Supergravity Models, Supersymmetry and Duality, Supersymmetry Breaking

ARXIV EPRINT: 2402.13899



Contents

1	Introduction	1
2	 Preliminaries 2.1 Type IIA orientifolds with general fluxes 2.2 The F-term flux potential 2.3 Bianchi identities and the tadpole constraints 2.4 Flux invariants and moduli fixing 	3 3 6 7 8
3	Analytics of the non-geometric flux vacua	10
	3.1 SUSY vacua conditions	11
	3.2 Non-SUSY vacua conditions	11
	3.3 On generic dS no-go scenarios	14
4	Imposing the Ansatz	17
	4.1 Simplified scalar potential and its derivatives	18
	4.2 Insights from a couple of examples	19
5	dS no-go in the Ansatz	21
	5.1 Reproducing and expanding the NSNS analysis	21
	5.2 A more comprehensive classification with all the axionic fluxes	22
	5.3 An illustrative example	25
6	Conclusions	26
A	Derivatives of the potential	27
	A.1 General equations	27
	A.2 Imposing the Ansatz	28
	A.3 Non-primitive decomposition	28
в	Auxiliary equations for dS no-go	2 8
С	Intermediate results for scalar potential simplifications using the Ansatz	29
D	List of possible dS no-go scenarios	3 0

1 Introduction

Exploring de Sitter (dS) solutions in the landscape of superstring vacua has been a central and challenging goal in string phenomenology. Continuous studies have resulted in a series of no-go scenarios in the last two decades [1-19], setting important constraints on the possibility to obtain superstring vacua compatible with cosmological observations. More recently, in the spirit of the swampland program — see [20-22] for a review — several conjectures questioning

the existence of dS vacua in string theory have been formulated [23-25].¹ Building on the fact that most of the initially realized dS no-go results were based on type IIA orientifold models [3-14], we aim to perform a detailed analytic study of the F-term potential in the landscape of Type IIA flux vacua. To expand over the previous results, we will consider (non-)geometric fluxes in addition to the usual form fluxes (H_3 and F_p).

The introduction and study of non-geometric fluxes have been motivated from various perspectives. They appear in the context of gauged supergravities [28-30], in Double Field Theory (DFT) [31-33] and in superstring compactifications with generalized fluxes [33-39]. In addition, the analysis of non-geometric flux compactifications has also led to some interesting utilizations of the symplectic geometries to formulate the four-dimensional effective scalar potentials in a concise form [40-45]. These multidisciplinary interconnections have been very helpful for exploring the landscape of (generalized) flux vacua. A useful review of the developments of non-geometric flux compactifications can be found in [46].

The initial motivation for studying the non-geometric flux compactifications lies in the fact that (non-)geometric fluxes naturally arise from a successive application of T-duality on the NS-NS three-form flux H_3 of Type II supergravity theories [47]. It turns out that such generalized fluxes induce tree-level contributions to the scalar potential depending on the different moduli. As a consequence, this can lead to the possibility of dynamically stabilizing all the moduli in the absence of any (non-)perturbative corrections.² In this regard, incorporating such (non-)geometric fluxes certainly enriches the possibilities from a model-building perspective.

However, it is still not fully known how many different kinds of fluxes can be consistently turned on simultaneously in a given construction [38, 47, 49–53]. Even the Bianchi identities, the simplest known constraints for the flux choice, are not fully settled for generic Calabi Yau orientifold compactifications, as can be observed from the fact that there are two inequivalent formulations for these relations [38, 50, 54, 55].

In the context of moduli stabilization and the attempts to construct de-Sitter (dS) vacua, the models based on type II orientifolds with (non-)geometric fluxes have attracted a considerable amount of attention in recent years [36-38, 56-65]. Understanding the effective four-dimensional (non-geometric) scalar potentials and the possible constraints are among the central issues. On these same lines, exploring the ten-dimensional origin of four-dimensional effective potentials, which is known as the *dimensional oridation* process, has also been one of the main topics of interest [33, 40, 42, 43, 45, 66-68].

In this paper, we consider the generic bilinear structure of the non-geometric scalar potential [39]. As commented in the original reference, this form of the potential is derived assuming that possible corrections are suppressed and do not spoil the axionic shift symmetries of the Kähler potentials³ [69, 70]. Taking this as a working assumption,⁴ we present a detailed

¹Let us also mention that there are several proposals claiming for consistent dS realization, and we refer the interested readers to the reviews [26, 27].

²Notice that in type IIA with only RR and NSNS standard fluxes all moduli can be stabilized in AdS vacua [3, 48].

 $^{^{3}\}alpha'$ corrections respect this symmetry — at least at first order —. For simplicity, we will assume we can ignore them.

⁴Of course, one should check that this is true once a particular vacuum is chosen.

analysis regarding the constraints on the fluxes to realize dS extrema, exploring under what conditions dS no-go can be derived. In the first part of the paper, we will follow a completely general approach. We will see that just including more and more fluxes does not guarantee that one can find dS extrema. The main results of this first part are expression (3.26) and tables 2 and 3.

After the general discussion, we will improve our analytical control by looking at a particular Ansatz. More specifically, we will impose a proportionality relation between the F-terms and the Kähler derivatives when both are evaluated at the vacuum. This is the same scenario already studied in the presence of only RR and NSNS fluxes in [62] and with geometric fluxes in [39]. We will see that, under these conditions, the scalar potential can be compactly expressed using a set of eight so-called *axionic fluxes*. Then, the simple choice of imposing an axionic flux to be zero or non-zero generates 256 flux configurations. Of these, 227 cases lead to dS no-go scenarios, whereas the other 29 choices remain undecided.

The paper is organized as follows. In section 2 we begin with a brief review on the generic type IIA non-geometric flux compactifications where we provide the necessary ingredients relevant for the current work. Section 3 presents a detailed analysis of the generic conditions which can lead to dS no-go results. In Section 4 we impose the Ansatz that F-terms are proportional to the respective Kähler derivatives and analyze the subsequent simplified expressions for the scalar potential and its various derivatives. Section 5 provides a detailed classification of the dS no-go scenarios in the Ansatz. Finally, we summarize the findings in section 6, and present all the other details and necessary intermediate steps in appendices A, B, and C. Two detailed lists of all the dS no-go cases, and those for which a dS no-go could not be obtained, are displayed in appendix D.

2 Preliminaries

Type IIA compactifications on Calabi-Yau orientifolds with fluxes are a fascinating corner of the string landscape, since they provide a framework where one can stabilize all the moduli in a weakly coupled, scale separated AdS regime with the classical potential generated by the *p*-form fluxes alone [3, 48]. One can even consider a more extensive set of NS fluxes related to each other by T-dualities, as discussed in [47]. Putting all these fluxes into the game yields a richer scalar potential, studied in [36, 38, 49, 50, 71, 72] and more recently in [39]. In this section, we will review the scalar potential generated when all the *p*-form, geometric and non-geometric fluxes are turned on over a CY orientifold. As shown in [39], using some previous work [42], such potential can be rewritten in a very compact way thanks to the bilinear formalism developed in [73, 74]. This bilinear structure has turned out to be a potent tool to study the vacua structure, as demonstrated in [39, 62, 75, 76]. In the following, we will restrict ourselves to recalling the main ingredients we will need from [39], referring the reader to this reference for a more detailed discussion.

2.1 Type IIA orientifolds with general fluxes

Let us consider (massive) type IIA string theory compactified on an orientifold of $X_4 \times X_6$ with X_6 a compact Calabi-Yau three-fold. We take the standard orientifold quotient by

cohomology group	$H_{+}^{(1,1)}$	$H_{-}^{(1,1)}$	$H_{+}^{(2,2)}$	$H_{-}^{(2,2)}$	H^{3}_{+}	H_{-}^{3}
dimension	$h_{+}^{(1,1)}$	$h_{-}^{(1,1)}$	$h_{-}^{(1,1)}$	$h_{+}^{(1,1)}$	$h^{(2,1)} + 1$	$h^{(2,1)} + 1$
basis	ω_{lpha}	ω_a	$\tilde{\omega}^a$	$\tilde{\omega}^{lpha}$	$lpha_{\mu}$	β^{μ}

Table 1. Extracted from [81] and adapted to our conventions. We are working in units where $\ell_s \equiv 2\pi\sqrt{\alpha'} = 1$. For simplicity, with respect to *standard* notation, we have gathered the \mathcal{I} -odd three-forms $(\alpha_I, \beta^{\Lambda})$ into $(\alpha_I, \beta^{\Lambda}) \equiv \alpha_{\mu}$ and the \mathcal{I} -even three-forms $(\beta^J, \alpha_{\Sigma})$ into $(\beta^J, \alpha_{\Sigma}) \equiv \beta^{\mu}$.

 $\Omega_p(-)^{F_L}\mathcal{I}$ [77–80],⁵ with \mathcal{I} an involution of the Calabi-Yau metric acting on the Kähler 2-form J and the holomorphic 3-form Ω as $\mathcal{I}(J) = -J$ and $\mathcal{I}(\Omega) = e^{2i\theta}\overline{\Omega}$, respectively. Under the action of \mathcal{I} , the harmonic forms split into even and odd $H^p(X_6) = H^p_+ \oplus H^p_-$. We can introduce a basis for each of these subspaces:

In the absence of background fluxes and neglecting worldsheet and D-brane instanton effects, dimensional reduction to 4d leads to a $\mathcal{N} = 1$ supergravity theory whose massless field content can be organized as follows [81]:

• There are $h_{-}^{1,1}$ complex fields, the complexified Kähler moduli T^a . They come from the complexification of the Kähler 2-form $J = e^{\frac{\phi}{2}} t^a \omega_a$ and the $B = b^a \omega_a$ field, defined by $J_c \equiv B + i e^{\frac{\phi}{2}} J = (b^a + i t^a) \omega_a$. Here J is in the Einstein frame, ϕ is the 10d dilaton. Integrating on the correspondent cycles the complex scalar fields in 4d are

$$T^a = b^a + it^a$$
, $a \in \{1, \dots, h^{1,1}_{-}\}$. (2.1)

The metric appearing in the kinetic terms is derived from the Kähler potential

$$K_K = -\log\left(\frac{4}{3}\mathcal{K}\right), \qquad (2.2)$$

where $\mathcal{K} = \mathcal{K}_{abc} t^a t^b t^c = 6 \operatorname{Vol}_{X_6} = \frac{3}{4} \mathcal{G}_T$ is homogeneous of degree three on the t^a and \mathcal{K}_{abc} are the CY triple intersection numbers, $\mathcal{K}_{abc} = -\int_{X_6} \omega_a \wedge \omega_b \wedge \omega_c$

• There are $1 + h^{2,1}$ complex fields, so-called complex structure moduli, coming from the integration of the complex 3-form Ω , the axio-dilaton and the RR 3-form potential C_3 . Defining $\Omega_c \equiv C_3 + i \operatorname{Re}(\mathcal{C}\Omega)$ where $\mathcal{C} \equiv e^{-\phi - i\theta} e^{\frac{1}{2}(K_{cs} - K_K)}$ and $K_{cs} = -\log\left(-i\int_{X_6}\Omega \wedge \overline{\Omega}\right)$ the complex structure moduli are defined as

$$U^{\mu} = \xi^{\mu} + iu^{\mu} = \int_{X_6} \Omega_c \wedge \beta^{\mu}, \qquad \mu \in \{0, \dots, h^{2,1}\}.$$
 (2.3)

Their kinetic terms are given in terms of the following piece of the Kähler potential

$$K_Q = 4 \log\left(\frac{e^{\phi}}{\sqrt{\text{Vol}_{X_6}}}\right) \equiv -\log\left(e^{-4D}\right), \qquad (2.4)$$

⁵Here Ω_p the worldsheet parity reversal operator and F_L spacetime fermion number for the left movers.

where D is the four-dimensional dilaton. The function $\mathcal{G}_Q = e^{-K_Q/2}$ is a homogeneous function of degree two in u^{μ} . These moduli are redefined in the presence of D6-brane moduli, and so is the Kähler potential (2.4) [74, 82–84]. For simplicity, we will not consider compactifications with D6-brane moduli in the following.

• In addition to the spectrum of the chiral scalar fields, vector multiplets can also arise from the dimensional reduction of the 3-form C_3 if the CY has $h_+^{1,1} \neq 0$. For simplicity, we will only consider compactifications such that $h_+^{1,1} = 0$. This assumption also prevents us from considering the D-term flux potential, which does not contribute in this case.

The flux superpotential. On top of this background, one can add RR, NSNS, geometric and non-geometric fluxes. Following the conventions of [62] we will define the flux quanta of the RR fields as

$$m = G_0, \quad m^a = \int_{X_6} \bar{G}_2 \wedge \tilde{\omega}^a, \quad e_a = -\int_{X_6} \bar{G}_4 \wedge \omega_a, \quad e_0 = -\int_{X_6} \bar{G}_6.$$
 (2.5)

The flux superpotential including RR and also geometric and non-geometric NS fluxes is described in terms of a twisted differential operator [71]

$$\mathcal{D} = d - H \wedge + f \triangleleft + Q \triangleright + R \bullet, \qquad (2.6)$$

where H is the NS three-form flux, f encodes the geometric fluxes, Q that of globallynon-geometric fluxes and R is the locally-non-geometric fluxes, see e.g. [46, 49] for more details. The action of various fluxes appearing in \mathcal{D} is such that for an arbitrary p-form A_p , the pieces $H \wedge A_p$, $f \triangleleft A_p$, $Q \triangleright A_p$ and $R \bullet A_p$ denote a (p+3), (p+1), (p-1) and (p-3)-form respectively. Following the conventions in [38], the action of the different NS fluxes on the basis of harmonic p-form is

$$H \wedge \mathbf{1} = -h_{\mu}\beta^{\mu}, \qquad H \wedge \alpha_{\mu} = h_{\mu}\Phi_{6},$$

$$f \triangleleft \omega_{a} = -f_{a\mu}\beta^{\mu}, \qquad f \triangleleft \omega_{\alpha} = \hat{f}_{\alpha}{}^{\mu}\alpha_{\mu},$$

$$f \triangleleft \alpha_{\mu} = -f_{a\mu}\tilde{\omega}^{a}, \qquad f \triangleleft \beta^{\mu} = -f_{\alpha}{}^{\mu}\tilde{\omega}^{\alpha},$$

$$Q \triangleright \tilde{\omega}^{a} = -Q^{a}{}_{\mu}\beta^{\mu}, \qquad Q \triangleright \tilde{\omega}^{\alpha} = Q^{\alpha\mu}\alpha_{\mu},$$

$$Q \triangleright \alpha_{\mu} = Q^{a}{}_{\mu}\omega_{a}, \qquad Q \triangleright \beta^{\mu} = Q^{\alpha\mu}\omega_{\alpha},$$

$$R \bullet \Phi_{6} = R_{\mu}\beta^{\mu}, \qquad R \bullet \alpha_{\mu} = R_{\mu}\mathbf{1},$$

$$(2.7)$$

where Φ_6 is the normalised volume form, $\int_{X_6} \Phi_6 = 1$, and we also have that $H \wedge \beta^{\mu} = R \bullet \beta^{\mu} = 0$. The NS flux quanta are $h_{\mu}, f_{a\mu}, f_{\alpha}{}^{\mu}, Q^{a}{}_{\mu}, Q^{\alpha}{}^{\mu}, R_{\mu} \in \mathbb{Z}$. This specifies the action of the twisted differential operator (2.6) on each *p*-form.

In addition, the internal RR fluxes can be gathered in a single polyform

$$\bar{\mathbf{G}} = G_0 + \bar{G}_2 + \bar{G}_4 + \bar{G}_6 \,. \tag{2.8}$$

Given these definitions, the flux-generated superpotential is $W = W_{\rm RR} + W_{\rm NS}$ [36, 71]

$$W_{\rm RR} = -\int_{X_6} \bar{\mathbf{G}} \wedge e^{J_c} , \qquad W_{\rm NS} = \int_{X_6} \Omega_c \wedge \mathcal{D}\left(e^{-J_c}\right) . \tag{2.9}$$

Skipping the intermediate steps and referring again to [62] for a complete derivation, these superpotentials have the following expressions [36, 38, 49, 71, 72]

$$W_{\rm RR} = e_0 + e_a T^a + \frac{1}{2} \mathcal{K}_{abc} m^a T^b T^c + \frac{m}{6} \mathcal{K}_{abc} T^a T^b T^c , \qquad (2.10)$$

$$W_{\rm NS} = U^{\mu} \left[h_{\mu} + f_{a\mu} T^{a} + \frac{1}{2} \mathcal{K}_{abc} T^{b} T^{c} Q^{a}{}_{\mu} + \frac{1}{6} \mathcal{K}_{abc} T^{a} T^{b} T^{c} R_{\mu} \right], \qquad (2.11)$$

where $e_0, e_a, m^a, m, h_\mu, f_{a\mu}, Q^a{}_\mu, R_\mu$ are all integers.

2.2 The F-term flux potential

Under the assumption that background fluxes do not affect the Kähler potential pieces (2.2) and (2.4),⁶ one can easily compute the F-term flux potential for closed string moduli via the standard supergravity expression

$$V_F = e^K \left(K^{\mathcal{A}\overline{\mathcal{B}}} D_{\mathcal{A}} W \,\overline{D}_{\overline{\mathcal{B}}} \overline{W} - 3 \,|W|^2 \right), \tag{2.12}$$

where the index $\mathcal{A} = \{a, \mu\}$ runs over all moduli. In [62], following what was done in [73, 74], it was shown that this F-term potential displays a bilinear structure of the form

$$V_F = \rho_{\mathcal{A}} Z^{\mathcal{A}\mathcal{B}} \rho_{\mathcal{B}}, \qquad (2.13)$$

where the matrix entries $Z^{\mathcal{AB}}$ only depend on the saxions $\{t^a, n^{\mu}\}$, while the $\rho_{\mathcal{A}}$ only depend on the flux quanta and the axions $\{b^a, \xi^{\mu}\}$. Indeed, one can easily rewrite the results in [42] to fit the above expression, obtaining the following result. The set of axion polynomials with flux-quanta coefficients are

$$\rho_{\mathcal{A}} = \{\rho_0, \rho_a, \tilde{\rho}^a, \tilde{\rho}, \rho_\mu, \rho_{a\mu}, \tilde{\rho}^a_\mu, \tilde{\rho}_\mu\}, \qquad (2.14)$$

and are defined as

$$\rho_0 = e_0 + e_a b^a + \frac{1}{2} \mathcal{K}_{abc} m^a b^b b^c + \frac{m}{6} \mathcal{K}_{abc} b^a b^b b^c + \rho_\mu \xi^\mu \,, \qquad (2.15a)$$

$$\rho_a = e_a + \mathcal{K}_{abc} m^b b^c + \frac{m}{2} \mathcal{K}_{abc} b^b b^c + \rho_{a\mu} \xi^\mu \,, \qquad (2.15b)$$

$$\tilde{\rho}^a = m^a + mb^a + \tilde{\rho}^a_\mu \xi^\mu \,, \tag{2.15c}$$

$$\tilde{\rho} = m + \tilde{\rho}_{\mu} \xi^{\mu} \,, \tag{2.15d}$$

and

$$\rho_{\mu} = h_{\mu} + f_{a\mu}b^{a} + \frac{1}{2}\mathcal{K}_{abc}b^{b}b^{c}Q^{a}_{\mu} + \frac{1}{6}\mathcal{K}_{abc}b^{a}b^{b}b^{c}R_{\mu}, \qquad (2.16a)$$

$$\rho_{a\mu} = f_{a\mu} + \mathcal{K}_{abc} b^b Q^c_\mu + \frac{1}{2} \mathcal{K}_{abc} b^b b^c R_\mu , \qquad (2.16b)$$

$$\tilde{\rho}^a_\mu = Q^a_\mu + b^a R_\mu \,, \tag{2.16c}$$

$$\tilde{\rho}_{\mu} = R_{\mu} \,. \tag{2.16d}$$

⁶The validity of this assumption should not be taken for granted and will depend on the particular class of vacua. The results in [85–87] suggest that it is valid in the presence of only *p*-form fluxes $F_{\rm RR}$, *H*. However, [88] gives an example of compactification with metric fluxes in which fluxes heavily correct the naive KK scale, and so should be the Kähler potential.

The polynomials (2.16) are primarily new with respect to the Calabi-Yau case with *p*-form fluxes, as they highly depend on the presence of geometric and non-geometric fluxes. As in [74], both (2.15) and (2.16) have the interpretation of invariants under the discrete shift symmetries of the combined superpotential $W = W_{\rm RR} + W_{\rm NS}$.

For the bilinear form Z, one finds the following expression

$$Z^{\mathcal{AB}} = e^{K} \begin{bmatrix} \mathbf{G} & \mathcal{O} \\ \mathcal{O}^{t} & \mathbf{C} \end{bmatrix}, \qquad (2.17)$$

where

$$\mathbf{G} = \begin{pmatrix} 4 & 0 & 0 & 0 \\ 0 & g^{ab} & 0 & 0 \\ 0 & 0 & \frac{4\mathcal{K}^2}{9}g_{ab} & 0 \\ 0 & 0 & 0 & \frac{\mathcal{K}^2}{9} \end{pmatrix}, \qquad \mathcal{O} = \begin{pmatrix} 0 & 0 & 0 & -\frac{2\mathcal{K}}{3}u^{\nu} \\ 0 & 0 & \frac{2\mathcal{K}}{3}u^{\nu}\delta^a_b & 0 \\ 0 & -\frac{2\mathcal{K}}{3}u^{\nu}\delta^b_a & 0 & 0 \\ \frac{2\mathcal{K}}{3}u^{\nu} & 0 & 0 & 0 \end{pmatrix}, \qquad (2.18)$$

$$\mathbf{C} = \begin{pmatrix} c^{\mu\nu} & 0 & -\tilde{c}^{\mu\nu}\frac{\kappa_b}{2} & 0\\ 0 & \tilde{c}^{\mu\nu}t^a t^b + g^{ab}u^{\mu}u^{\nu} & 0 & -\tilde{c}^{\mu\nu}t^a\frac{\kappa}{6}\\ -\tilde{c}^{\mu\nu}\frac{\kappa_a}{2} & 0 & \frac{1}{4}\tilde{c}^{\mu\nu}\kappa_a\kappa_b + \frac{4\kappa^2}{9}g_{ab}u^{\mu}u^{\nu} & 0\\ 0 & -\tilde{c}^{\mu\nu}t^b\frac{\kappa}{6} & 0 & \frac{\kappa^2}{36}c^{\mu\nu} \end{pmatrix}.$$
 (2.19)

Here $K = K_K + K_Q$, $g_{ab} = \frac{1}{4} \partial_{t^a} \partial_{t^b} K_K \equiv \frac{1}{4} \partial_a \partial_b K_K$, and $c_{\mu\nu} = \frac{1}{4} \partial_{u^{\mu}} \partial_{u^{\nu}} K_Q \equiv \frac{1}{4} \partial_{\mu} \partial_{\nu} K_Q$, while upper indices denote their inverses. We have defined $\mathcal{K}_a = \mathcal{K}_{abc} t^b t^c$ and $\tilde{c}^{\mu\nu} = c^{\mu\nu} - 4u^{\mu} u^{\nu}$.

Putting all this together, the final expression for the F-term potential is explicitly given in expressions (3.1)–(3.2), which generalizes the results of [74] — which only considered RR and NSNS fluxes — and can be easily connected to other known formulations of (non-)geometric potentials in the type IIA literature, e.g. [7, 18, 33, 35].

2.3 Bianchi identities and the tadpole constraints

Before coming to the study of flux vacua, it is important to look for the constraints arising from the Bianchi identities. One needs to impose them on the fluxes to get the genuine scalar potential. In our setup, these constraints can be obtained by imposing that the twisted differential \mathcal{D} in (2.6) satisfies the nilpotency condition $\mathcal{D}^2 = 0$ when applied on the *p*-form basis of the different cohomology groups [38, 50]. Using the flux actions (2.7) in the nilpotency condition, one easily obtains the following constraints:

$$h_{\mu} \hat{f}_{\alpha}{}^{\mu} = 0, \qquad h_{\mu} \hat{Q}^{\alpha \mu} = 0, \qquad f_{a\mu} \hat{f}_{\alpha}{}^{\mu} = 0, \qquad f_{a\mu} \hat{Q}^{\alpha \mu} = 0, R_{\mu} \hat{Q}^{\alpha \mu} = 0, \qquad R_{\mu} \hat{f}_{\alpha}{}^{\mu} = 0, \qquad Q^{a}{}_{\mu} \hat{Q}^{\alpha \mu} = 0, \qquad \hat{f}_{\alpha}{}^{\mu} Q^{a}{}_{\mu} = 0, \qquad (2.20)$$
$$\hat{f}_{\alpha}{}^{[\mu} \hat{Q}^{\alpha \nu]} = 0, \qquad h_{[\mu} R_{\nu]} = f_{a[\mu} Q^{a}{}_{\nu]}.$$

Let us mention that, for our current work, we will focus on the orientifold constructions for which $h_{+}^{1,1} = 0$ and therefore all the fluxes, moduli and axions with α index will be absent. This means that the only conditions which survive the orientifold project are given by

$$h_{[\mu} R_{\nu]} = f_{a[\mu} Q^a{}_{\nu]} \iff \rho_{[\mu} \tilde{\rho}_{\nu]} = \rho_{a[\mu} \tilde{\rho}^a{}_{\nu]}, \qquad (2.21)$$

where the last equation follows from the interesting fact that the set of constraints arising from the Bianchi identities continues to hold even after all the fluxes are promoted to their respective axionic-fluxes [42, 44, 54]. However, as we have mentioned earlier, the two known formulations of the Bianchi identities, namely the *Standard formulation* and the *Cohomology formulation*, turn out to result in two inequivalent sets of constraints [38, 50, 54, 55]. In fact, the constraints arising from the Cohomology formulation are contained in the Standard formulation, which, in addition has some more constraints, refereed as "missing" Bianchi identities in [55]. So, given such state-of-the-art, even if one manages to realize a suitable (dS) solution in a cohomology approach, the possibility of having additional constraints may not be generically ruled out!

Complementing the flux constraints arising from the NSNS Bianchi identities, there are tadpole cancellation conditions that one must consider while constructing concrete models. These RR Bianchi identities are slightly non-trivial compared to those involving the NSNS flux. They can be encoded in the following,

$$\mathcal{D}\bar{\mathbf{G}} = \sum_{D6/D6'} q_{D6/D6'} + \sum_{O6} q_{O6}, \qquad (2.22)$$

where $q_{D6/D6'}$ and q_{O6} denote the three-forms corresponding to the respective charges of the D6-brane, its image D6'-brane and the O6-plane which can be consistently allowed by the choice of orientifold involution. For our case, the left side of eq. (2.22) turns out to be a flux-invariant given by

$$\mathcal{D}\bar{\mathbf{G}} = (m h_{\nu} - m^{a} f_{a\nu} + e_{a} Q_{\nu}^{a} - e_{0} R_{\nu}) \beta^{\nu} = (\tilde{\rho}\rho_{\nu} - \tilde{\rho}^{a}\rho_{a\nu} + \rho_{a}\tilde{\rho}_{\nu}^{a} - \rho_{0}\tilde{\rho}_{\nu}) \beta^{\nu}.$$
(2.23)

However, the introduction of appropriate local sources can be argued to cancel the tadpole charges, which can be determined once the local brane settings and *O*-planes are concretely specified in the model of interest. A recent update about (the challenges in) incorporating these constraints in the non-geometric models can be found in [89].

2.4 Flux invariants and moduli fixing

The bilinear formalism of the scalar potential and the use of gauge-invariant flux-axion polynomials provide a powerful tool to study the moduli stabilization processes systematically. Since the flux polynomials depend on the axions b^a , moduli fixing amounts to solve a system of algebraic equations in the saxions t^a and the flux polynomials ρ_A . However, this change of framework comes at the cost of decoupling the number of variables from the number of moduli, since the size of the set ρ_A scales with the dimension of the flux lattice and not with the dimension of the moduli space. As a result, in most cases, the number of polynomials will exceed the rank of the system of equations of motion. This is not a problem to achieve a well-determined solution because the set ρ_A is not composed of fully independent variables. There are many constraints arising from the way these objects have been defined. Such constraints are expressed in terms of a set of invariant combinations of flux-axion polynomials, which are invariant under shifts of the axions. The main invariants relevant to the construction considered in this paper were identified in [39]. At the linear level, there is of course $\tilde{\rho}_{\mu} = R_{\mu}$. At the quadratic level, we have

$$\tilde{\rho}\rho_{\mu} - \tilde{\rho}^{a}\rho_{a\mu} + \rho_{a}\tilde{\rho}^{a}_{\mu} - \rho_{0}\tilde{\rho}_{\mu} , \qquad (2.24)$$

and

$$\tilde{\rho}^a_{[\mu}\tilde{\rho}_{\nu]}\,,\qquad\rho_{[\mu}\,\tilde{\rho}_{\nu]}-\rho_{a[\mu}\,\tilde{\rho}^a_{\ \nu]}\,,\qquad\rho_{a(\mu}\tilde{\rho}_{\nu)}-\mathcal{K}_{abc}\tilde{\rho}^b_{\mu}\tilde{\rho}^c_{\nu}\,,\qquad(2.25)$$

where in the above () and [] stand for symmetrization and anti-symmetrization of indices, respectively. We again emphasize that the expressions above can be written exclusively in terms of the flux quanta and are therefore moduli independent.

Let us also mention that there appears to be a close correlation between the flux invariants, the Bianchi identities and the tadpole contributions. For example, the flux invariant (2.24) appears in the V_{loc} piece in the scalar potential (3.2). Further, as mentioned in eq. (2.21), the following NSNS Bianchi identity holds and happens to be the only one (in the cohomology formulation) which survives the orientifold projection with $h_{+}^{1,1} = 0$ [42],

$$h_{[\mu} R_{\nu]} = f_{a[\mu} Q^a{}_{\nu]} \quad \Longleftrightarrow \quad \rho_{[\mu} \tilde{\rho}_{\nu]} = \rho_{a[\mu} \tilde{\rho}^a{}_{\nu]}.$$
(2.26)

As mentioned in (2.25), it turns out that $\rho_{[\mu} \tilde{\rho}_{\nu]} - \rho_{a[\mu} \tilde{\rho}^a{}_{\nu]} = h_{[\mu} R_{\nu]} - f_{a[\mu} Q^a{}_{\nu]}$ is also an invariant flux combination. Moreover, it has been shown in [55] that there are additional, the so-called missing Bianchi identities, in explicit toroidal orientifold models based on $\mathbb{T}^6/(\mathbb{Z}_2 \times \mathbb{Z}_2)$ and $\mathbb{T}^6/\mathbb{Z}_4$ orbifolds. Some of these are given as below,

$$f_{a(\mu} R_{\nu)} = \mathcal{K}_{abc} Q^b_{\mu} Q^c_{\nu}, \qquad 3h_{(\mu} R_{\nu)} = f_{a(\mu} Q^a_{\nu)}. \tag{2.27}$$

Since the set of Bianchi identities which hold for the usual fluxes remains to hold (as the whole set of constraints) when those usual fluxes are promoted to their respective axionic-fluxes [42, 44, 54], such missing Bianchi identities can be written as follows,

$$\rho_{a(\mu}\tilde{\rho}_{\nu)} = \mathcal{K}_{abc}\tilde{\rho}^{b}_{\mu}\tilde{\rho}^{c}_{\nu}, \qquad 3\rho_{(\mu}\,\tilde{\rho}_{\nu)} = \rho_{a(\mu}\,\tilde{\rho}^{a}_{\nu)}. \tag{2.28}$$

And therefore, for such cases, $\rho_{a(\mu}\tilde{\rho}_{\nu)} - \mathcal{K}_{abc}\tilde{\rho}^b_{\mu}\tilde{\rho}^c_{\nu}$ and $3\rho_{(\mu}\tilde{\rho}_{\nu)} - \rho_{a(\mu}\tilde{\rho}^a_{\nu)}$ are invariant fluxes as it has been observed in [39]. This shows a very interesting connection between the set of Bianchi identities and the set of flux invariants. Following the study of Bianchi identities in type IIA context in [42], one would expect several additional "missing" flux invariants corresponding to the "missing" Bianchi identities in a given concrete construction. In more generic orientifold constructions with $h^{1,1}_+ \neq 0$ and therefore fluxes supporting the *D*-terms, one would expect to have even more flux invariants, which generate obstructions to achieve full moduli stabilization [89].

The existence of these invariants constrains the dimension of the orbit of possible values for the set $\rho_{\mathcal{A}}$. The surviving degrees of freedom, which by construction are never larger than the number of axionic fields, are later fixed by the equations of motion. Depending on the Hodge numbers of the underlying Calabi-Yau orientifold, even when $h_{+}^{1,1} \neq 0$, the constraints arising from the invariants for generic flux configurations can be too strong to allow complete moduli stabilization. Such restrictions were already observed through the lenses of the Bianchi identities and the tadpole conditions in [89].

The rank of the choices of flux quanta also plays a crucial role, since new invariants may arise while others become trivial when lowering this value. For instance, if the non-geometric fluxes are set to zero (i.e. $Q^a_{\mu} = R_{\mu} = 0$), we have the following invariants at the linear level

$$\tilde{\rho} = m , \qquad \rho_{a\mu} = f_{a\mu} , \qquad (2.29)$$

while at the quadratic level we have

$$\tilde{\rho}\rho_{\mu} - \tilde{\rho}^{a}\rho_{a\mu} = (mh_{\mu} - m^{a}f_{a\mu}) , \qquad c^{a}\left(\tilde{\rho}\rho_{a} - \frac{1}{2}\mathcal{K}_{a\bar{b}c}\tilde{\rho}^{b}\tilde{\rho}^{c}\right) .$$
(2.30)

Here the $c^a \in \mathbb{Z}$ are such that $c^a \rho_{a\mu} = 0 \ \forall \mu$. This means that there are $h_{-}^{1,1} - r_f$ of this last class of invariants, with r_f the rank of $h^{1,1} \times (1 + h^{2,1})$ matrix $f_{a\mu}$. Considering all these invariants, one can see that $\rho_{\mathcal{A}}$ takes values in a $(1 + h_{-}^{1,1} + r_f)$ -dimensional orbit.

3 Analytics of the non-geometric flux vacua

Assuming that the choice of orientifold action is such that $h_+^{1,1} = 0$, which translates into the fact that there are no D-terms, the non-geometric scalar potential arising from the *F*-term contributions can be clubbed into the following three pieces,

$$V \equiv V_F = e^K \left(V_{RR} + V_{NS} + V_{loc} \right), \tag{3.1}$$

where

$$V_{RR} = e^{K} \left[4\rho_{0}^{2} + g^{ab}\rho_{a}\rho_{b} + \frac{4\mathcal{K}^{2}}{9}g_{ab}\tilde{\rho}^{a}\tilde{\rho}^{b} + \frac{\mathcal{K}^{2}}{9}\tilde{\rho}^{2} \right],$$

$$V_{NR} = e^{K} \left[e^{\mu\nu}\rho_{a}\rho_{a} + \left(\tilde{e}^{\mu\nu}t^{a}t^{b} + g^{ab}q^{\mu}\eta^{\nu}\right)\rho_{a}\rho_{a} + \left(\tilde{e}^{\mu\nu}\frac{\mathcal{K}_{a}}{2}\frac{\mathcal{K}_{b}}{2} + \frac{4\mathcal{K}^{2}}{2}q_{a}\eta^{\mu}\eta^{\nu}\right)\tilde{e}^{a}\tilde{e}^{b} \right],$$

$$(3.2)$$

$$\begin{split} V_{NS} &= e^{K} \left[c^{\mu\nu} \rho_{\mu} \rho_{\nu} + \left(\tilde{c}^{\mu\nu} t^{a} t^{b} + g^{ab} u^{\mu} u^{\nu} \right) \rho_{a\mu} \rho_{b\nu} + \left(\tilde{c}^{\mu\nu} \frac{\kappa_{a}}{2} \frac{\kappa_{b}}{2} + \frac{\kappa_{c}}{9} g_{ab} u^{\mu} u^{\nu} \right) \tilde{\rho}^{a}_{\mu} \tilde{\rho}^{b}_{\nu} \\ &+ \frac{\kappa^{2}}{36} c^{\mu\nu} \tilde{\rho}_{\mu} \tilde{\rho}_{\nu} - \tilde{c}^{\mu\nu} \mathcal{K}_{a} \rho_{\mu} \tilde{\rho}^{a}_{\nu} - \frac{\kappa_{c}}{3} \tilde{c}^{\mu\nu} t^{a} \rho_{a\mu} \tilde{\rho}_{\nu} \right], \\ V_{loc} &= \frac{4}{3} e^{K} \mathcal{K} u^{\nu} \left[\tilde{\rho} \rho_{\nu} - \tilde{\rho}^{a} \rho_{a\nu} + \rho_{a} \tilde{\rho}^{a}_{\nu} - \rho_{0} \tilde{\rho}_{\nu} \right]. \end{split}$$

For V_{RR} and V_{NS} , we have considered this classification promoting the usual scalar potential pieces for the standard RR and NS-NS fluxes to the corresponding axion polynomials. On the other hand, V_{loc} can be related to the tadpole equations, which we choose to cancel without introducing any D6 branes. Let us also point out that V_{RR} is a positive semi-definite quantity, whereas the sign of the V_{NS} and the V_{loc} contributions is a priori not fixed.

The generic superpotential can be expressed in terms of the axionic flux combinations after using eqs. (2.15)-(2.16) into eqs. (2.10)-(2.11),

$$W = \left[\left(\rho_0 - \frac{1}{2} \mathcal{K}_a \tilde{\rho}^a \right) - u^\mu \left(\rho_{a\mu} t^a - \frac{\mathcal{K}}{6} \tilde{\rho}_\mu \right) \right] + i \left[\left(\rho_a t^a - \frac{\mathcal{K}}{6} \tilde{\rho} \right) + u^\mu \left(\rho_\mu - \frac{1}{2} \mathcal{K}_a \tilde{\rho}^a_\mu \right) \right].$$
(3.3)

Subsequently, the *F*-terms arising from the (non-)geometric flux superpotential pieces given in eqs. (2.10)-(2.11) simplify to the following form,

$$F_{a} = \left[\rho_{a} - \mathcal{K}_{ab}\tilde{\rho}^{b}_{\mu}u^{\mu} - \frac{3}{2}\frac{\mathcal{K}_{a}}{\mathcal{K}}\left(t^{b}\rho_{b} + u^{\mu}\rho_{\mu} - \frac{1}{2}\mathcal{K}_{b}\tilde{\rho}^{b}_{\mu}u^{\mu} + \frac{1}{6}\mathcal{K}\tilde{\rho}\right)\right] + i\left[\mathcal{K}_{ab}\tilde{\rho}^{b} + \rho_{a\mu}u^{\mu} + \frac{3}{2}\frac{\mathcal{K}_{a}}{\mathcal{K}}\left(\rho_{0} - t^{a}u^{\mu}\rho_{a\mu} - \frac{1}{2}\mathcal{K}_{b}\tilde{\rho}^{b} - \frac{1}{6}\mathcal{K}\tilde{\rho}_{\mu}u^{\mu}\right)\right] , \qquad (3.4)$$
$$F_{\mu} = \left[\rho_{\mu} - \frac{1}{2}\mathcal{K}_{a}\tilde{\rho}^{a}_{\mu} + \frac{\partial_{\mu}K}{2}\left(t^{a}\rho_{a} + u^{\nu}\rho_{\nu} - \frac{1}{2}\mathcal{K}_{b}\tilde{\rho}^{b}_{\nu}u^{\nu} - \frac{1}{6}\mathcal{K}\tilde{\rho}\right)\right]$$

$$+ i\left(t^{a}\rho_{a\mu} - \frac{1}{6}\mathcal{K}\tilde{\rho}_{\mu} - \frac{\partial_{\mu}K}{2}\left(\rho_{0} - t^{a}u^{\nu}\rho_{a\nu} - \frac{1}{2}\mathcal{K}_{b}\tilde{\rho}^{b} + \frac{1}{6}\mathcal{K}\tilde{\rho}_{\nu}u^{\nu}\right)\right).$$
(3.5)

3.1 SUSY vacua conditions

Using the F-terms in eqs. (3.4)–(3.5), we impose the F-flatness conditions:

$$F_a = 0 = F_\mu, \tag{3.6}$$

which in particular leads to the following two complex constraints,

$$t^{a} F_{a} = \left[-\frac{1}{2} \rho_{a} t^{a} - \frac{1}{4} \mathcal{K}_{a} \tilde{\rho}_{\mu}^{a} u^{\mu} - \frac{3}{2} u^{\mu} \rho_{\mu} - \frac{\mathcal{K}}{4} \tilde{\rho} \right] + i \left[\frac{3}{2} \rho_{0} + \frac{1}{4} \mathcal{K}_{a} \tilde{\rho}^{a} - \frac{1}{2} \rho_{a\mu} t^{a} u^{\mu} - \frac{\mathcal{K}}{4} \tilde{\rho}_{\mu} u^{\mu} \right] = 0, \qquad (3.7)$$
$$u^{\mu} F_{\mu} = \left[-\rho_{\mu} u^{\mu} + \frac{1}{2} \mathcal{K}_{a} \tilde{\rho}_{\mu}^{a} u^{\mu} - 2 t^{a} \rho_{a} + \frac{\mathcal{K}}{3} \tilde{\rho} \right]$$

$$+i\left[2\rho_0 - \rho_{a\mu}t^a u^\mu - \mathcal{K}_a\tilde{\rho}^a + \frac{\mathcal{K}}{6}\tilde{\rho}_\mu u^\mu\right] = 0.$$
(3.8)

These four real conditions can be solved for different axion flux polynomials taken as different variables. One such solution of (3.7)–(3.8) can be given as under,

$$\rho_{\mu}u^{\mu} = -\frac{3\rho_{a}t^{a}}{4} - \frac{\tilde{\mathcal{K}}\tilde{\rho}}{24}, \qquad \qquad \rho_{a\mu}t^{a}u^{\mu} = \frac{9\rho_{0}}{4} - \frac{5\mathcal{K}_{a}\tilde{\rho}^{a}}{8}, \qquad (3.9)$$
$$\tilde{\rho}_{\mu}^{a}\mathcal{K}_{a}u^{\mu} = \frac{5\rho_{a}t^{a}}{2} - \frac{3\mathcal{K}\tilde{\rho}}{4}, \qquad \qquad \frac{\mathcal{K}}{6}\tilde{\rho}_{\mu}u^{\mu} = \frac{\rho_{0}}{4} + \frac{3\mathcal{K}_{a}\tilde{\rho}^{a}}{8}.$$

Note that the above solution is useful when we want to get rid of the NS-NS ρ polynomials for determining the vacuum, as it helps in expressing them in terms of the generalized RR sector polynomials. After imposing these four *F*-flatness conditions, the superpotential (3.3) simplifies into the following form,

$$W_{SUSY} = \left[\left(-\rho_0 + \frac{1}{2} \mathcal{K}_a \,\tilde{\rho}^a \right) - i \left(\rho_a \, t^a - \frac{\mathcal{K}}{6} \,\tilde{\rho} \right) \right]. \tag{3.10}$$

Subsequently, the AdS minimum is given as,

$$\langle V_{SUSY} \rangle = -3 e^{K} |W_{SUSY}|^{2} = -3 e^{K} \left[\left(\rho_{0} - \frac{1}{2} \mathcal{K}_{a} \tilde{\rho}^{a} \right)^{2} + \left(\rho_{a} t^{a} - \frac{\mathcal{K}}{6} \tilde{\rho} \right)^{2} \right],$$
 (3.11)

yielding a negative semidefinite scalar potential expressed as a sum of quadratic combinations of flux-axion polynomials. Now, in order to have the chance to obtain de Sitter vacua, we will explore the non-SUSY landscape.

3.2 Non-SUSY vacua conditions

In this subsection we perform an analytical exploration of the generic (non-SUSY) flux vacua.⁷ These vacua can be globally studied from the extremization of the scalar potential given in eqs. (3.1)-(3.2). In this regard, we present the relevant expressions of the various scalar potential derivatives. We will not calculate or discuss here the Hessian associated with these vacua, keeping in mind that it has to be computed to check its perturbative stability. Our main aim is to find swampland-like inequalities by considering the derivatives of the scalar potential and their various suitable combinations, as we will elaborate later on.

⁷Strictly speaking, we should always talk about the *extrema* of the potential rather than about the vacua, since we still need to check the absence of flat directions and the perturbative stability through the Hessian. Nevertheless, we will use both words indistinguishably, bearing in mind that for a given extremum one should study the second derivatives of the potential to see if it is a vacuum.

Axionic derivatives: the derivatives of the scalar potential corresponding to the C_3 axions ξ^{σ} are

$$\frac{\partial V}{\partial \xi^{\sigma}} = e^{K} \left[8\rho_{0}\rho_{\sigma} + 2g^{ab}\rho_{a}\rho_{b\sigma} + \frac{8\mathcal{K}^{2}}{9}g_{ab}\tilde{\rho}^{a}\tilde{\rho}^{b}_{\sigma} + \frac{2\mathcal{K}^{2}}{9}\tilde{\rho}_{\sigma}\tilde{\rho} - \frac{4\mathcal{K}}{3}\rho_{\sigma}\tilde{\rho}_{\nu}u^{\nu} + \frac{4\mathcal{K}}{3}\rho_{a\sigma}\tilde{\rho}^{a}_{\nu}u^{\nu} - \frac{4\mathcal{K}}{3}\tilde{\rho}^{a}_{\sigma}\rho_{a\nu}u^{\nu} + \frac{4\mathcal{K}}{3}\tilde{\rho}_{\sigma}\rho_{\nu}u^{\nu} \right].$$
(3.12)

Let us note that the last four terms are trivial due to the fact that usual NS-NS Bianchi identities continue to be satisfied after promoting the fluxes into the axionic ρ -flux polynomials. In fact, one has the following constraint from the generalized Bianchi identities [42, 44, 54],

$$H_{[\underline{\sigma}} R_{\underline{\mu}]} = f_{a[\underline{\sigma}} Q^a_{\underline{\mu}]}, \qquad \Longrightarrow \qquad \rho_{[\underline{\sigma}} \tilde{\rho}_{\underline{\mu}]} = \rho_{a[\underline{\sigma}} \tilde{\rho}^a_{\underline{\mu}]}, \qquad (3.13)$$

where the underlined indices are anti-symmetrized. Therefore, the ξ^σ derivative can be recast as

$$e^{-K}\frac{\partial V}{\partial\xi^{\sigma}} = 8\rho_o\,\rho_\sigma\,+2\,g^{ab}\rho_a\rho_{b\sigma}\,+\frac{8K^2}{9}g_{ab}\tilde{\rho}^a\tilde{\rho}^b_\sigma\,+\frac{2K^2}{9}\tilde{\rho_\sigma}\tilde{\rho}.$$
(3.14)

Similarly, we get the following derivative of the scalar potential w.r.t. the b^a axion,

$$e^{-K}\frac{\partial V}{\partial b^{a}} = 8\rho_{0}\rho_{a} + 2g^{bc}\mathcal{K}_{abd}\tilde{\rho}^{d}\rho_{c} + \frac{8\mathcal{K}^{2}}{9}g_{ac}\tilde{\rho}\tilde{\rho}^{c} + 2c^{\mu\nu}\rho_{a\mu}\rho_{\nu}$$
$$+ 2\left(\tilde{c}^{\mu\nu}t^{b}t^{c} + g^{bc}u^{\mu}u^{\nu}\right)\mathcal{K}_{abd}\tilde{\rho}^{d}_{\mu}\rho_{c\nu} + \left(\tilde{c}^{\mu\nu}\frac{\mathcal{K}_{a}\mathcal{K}_{c}}{2} + \frac{8\mathcal{K}^{2}}{9}g_{ac}u^{\mu}u^{\nu}\right)\tilde{\rho}_{\mu}\tilde{\rho}^{c}_{\nu}$$
$$-\tilde{c}^{\mu\nu}\left(\rho_{a\mu}\tilde{\rho}^{b}_{\nu}\mathcal{K}_{b} + \rho_{\mu}\tilde{\rho}_{\nu}\mathcal{K}_{a}\right) - \frac{1}{3}\tilde{c}^{\mu\nu}\mathcal{K}\mathcal{K}_{ac}\tilde{\rho}^{c}_{\mu}\tilde{\rho}_{\nu}.$$
(3.15)

Saxionic derivatives: the two saxionic derivatives are presented below,

$$e^{-K} \frac{\partial V}{\partial u^{\sigma}} = \left[e^{-K} V \partial_{\sigma} K - \frac{4K}{3} \tilde{\rho}_{\sigma} \rho_{0} + \frac{4K}{3} \tilde{\rho}_{\sigma}^{a} \rho_{a} - \frac{4K}{3} \tilde{\rho}^{a} \rho_{a\sigma} + \frac{4K}{3} \tilde{\rho}_{\rho} + \partial_{\sigma} c^{\mu\nu} \rho_{\mu} \rho_{\nu} \right. \\ \left. - \mathcal{K}_{b} (\partial_{\sigma} c^{\mu\nu} \rho_{\mu} \tilde{\rho}_{\nu}^{b} - 4\rho_{\sigma} \tilde{\rho}_{\nu}^{b} u^{\nu} - 4\rho_{\mu} u^{\mu} \tilde{\rho}_{\sigma}^{b}) + t^{a} t^{b} (\partial_{\sigma} c^{\mu\nu} \rho_{a\mu} \rho_{b\nu} - 8\rho_{a\sigma} \rho_{b\nu} u^{\nu}) \right. \\ \left. + 2g^{ab} \rho_{a\sigma} \rho_{b\nu} u^{\nu} - t^{a} \frac{\mathcal{K}}{3} (\partial_{\sigma} c^{\mu\nu} \rho_{a\mu} \tilde{\rho}_{\nu} - 4\rho_{a\sigma} \tilde{\rho}_{\nu} u^{\nu} - 4\rho_{a\mu} u^{\mu} \tilde{\rho}_{\sigma}) \right. \\ \left. + \frac{\mathcal{K}_{a} \mathcal{K}_{b}}{4} (\partial_{\sigma} c^{\mu\nu} \tilde{\rho}_{\mu}^{a} \tilde{\rho}_{\nu}^{b} - 8\tilde{\rho}_{\sigma}^{a} \tilde{\rho}_{\nu}^{b} u^{\nu}) + \frac{8\mathcal{K}^{2}}{9} g_{ab} \tilde{\rho}_{\sigma}^{a} \tilde{\rho}_{\nu}^{b} u^{\nu} + \frac{\mathcal{K}^{2}}{36} \partial_{\sigma} c^{\mu\nu} \tilde{\rho}_{\mu} \tilde{\rho}_{\nu} \right], \quad (3.16)$$

$$\left. e^{-K} \frac{\partial V}{\partial t^{a}} = \left[e^{-K} V \partial_{a} K + \partial_{a} g^{bc} \rho_{b} \rho_{c} + \left(\frac{8\mathcal{K}}{3} \mathcal{K}_{a} g_{bc} + \frac{4\mathcal{K}^{2}}{9} \partial_{a} g_{bc} \right) \tilde{\rho}^{b} \tilde{\rho}^{c} + \frac{2\mathcal{K}}{3} \mathcal{K}_{a} \tilde{\rho}^{2} \right. \\ \left. - 4\mathcal{K}_{a} \left(\rho_{0} \tilde{\rho}_{\nu} - \rho_{b} \tilde{\rho}_{\nu}^{b} + \tilde{\rho}^{b} \rho_{b\nu} - \tilde{\rho} \rho_{\nu} \right) u^{\nu} - 2\tilde{c}^{\mu\nu} \mathcal{K}_{ab} \rho_{\mu} \tilde{\rho}_{\nu}^{b} + 2\tilde{c}^{\mu\nu} t^{c} \rho_{a\mu} \rho_{c\nu} \right. \\ \left. + \partial_{a} g^{bc} \rho_{b\mu} u^{\mu} \rho_{c\nu} u^{\nu} - \tilde{c}^{\mu\nu} \left(\mathcal{K}_{a} t^{b} \rho_{b\mu} \tilde{\rho}_{\nu} + \frac{\mathcal{K}}{3} \rho_{a\mu} \tilde{\rho}_{\nu} \right) + \tilde{c}^{\mu\nu} \mathcal{K}_{ab} \mathcal{K}_{c} \tilde{\rho}_{\mu}^{b} \tilde{\rho}_{\nu}^{c} \right] \right.$$

From the explicit expressions of the derivatives of the scalar potential, equations (3.14)–(3.17), one can construct the following four conditions as the initial step for exploring the

non-SUSY landscape,

$$u^{\sigma} \frac{\partial V}{\partial \xi^{\sigma}} = 0, \qquad t^{a} \frac{\partial V}{\partial b^{a}} = 0, \qquad u^{\mu} \frac{\partial V}{\partial u^{\mu}} = 0, \qquad t^{a} \frac{\partial V}{\partial t^{a}} = 0.$$
 (3.18)

Note that the last two quantities $\left(u^{\mu}\frac{\partial V}{\partial u^{\mu}}\right)$ and $\left(t^{a}\frac{\partial V}{\partial t^{a}}\right)$ can be expressed as a linear combination of the various scalar potential pieces, as we will exploit later. Moreover, it turns out that solving the last two (saxionic) extremization relations is equivalent to looking into the volume/dilaton (\mathcal{V}, D) -plane as studied earlier, e.g. see [4–7]. More precisely, let us consider the first of these two relations, which is given by

$$u^{\mu}\frac{\partial V}{\partial u^{\mu}} \equiv -4V + e^{K} \left[-\frac{4\mathcal{K}}{3}u^{\nu}\rho_{0}\tilde{\rho}_{\nu} + \frac{4\mathcal{K}}{3}u^{\nu}\rho_{b}\tilde{\rho}_{\nu}^{b} - \frac{4\mathcal{K}}{3}u^{\nu}\tilde{\rho}^{b}\rho_{b\nu} + \frac{4\mathcal{K}}{3}u^{\nu}\tilde{\rho}\rho_{\nu} \right]$$
(3.19)

$$+2c^{\mu\nu}\rho_{\mu}\rho_{\nu}+2(\tilde{c}^{\mu\nu}t^{b}t^{c}+g^{bc}u^{\mu}u^{\nu})\rho_{b\mu}\rho_{c\nu}-2\tilde{c}^{\mu\nu}\mathcal{K}_{b}\rho_{\mu}\tilde{\rho}_{\nu}^{b}-\frac{2\mathcal{K}}{3}\tilde{c}^{\mu\nu}t^{b}\rho_{b\mu}\tilde{\rho}_{\nu}$$
$$+\left(\frac{1}{2}\mathcal{K}_{a}\mathcal{K}_{b}\tilde{c}^{\mu\nu}+\frac{8\mathcal{K}^{2}}{9}g_{ab}u^{\mu}u^{\nu}\right)\tilde{\rho}_{\mu}^{b}\tilde{\rho}_{\nu}^{c}+\frac{\mathcal{K}^{2}}{18}c^{\mu\nu}\tilde{\rho}_{\mu}\tilde{\rho}_{\nu}\Big]=0.$$

Now, using the decomposition of the potential given in eq. (3.1), it can be observed that the above relation (3.19) can be compactly rewritten as

$$u^{\mu} \frac{\partial V}{\partial u^{\mu}} = -4 V_{RR} - 2 V_{NS} - 3 V_{loc} \,. \tag{3.20}$$

For the cases when $V_{loc} \neq 0$, using the fact that the above formula vanishes when evaluated at the vacuum, one can eliminate V_{loc} — whose sign is undetermined — in (3.1). Subsequently, the potential at the vacuum can always be written as,

$$\langle V \rangle = \frac{\langle V_{NS} \rangle}{3} - \frac{\langle V_{RR} \rangle}{3}. \tag{3.21}$$

So, given the fact that the V_{RR} contribution is always positive semidefinite (indeed (3.2) directly implies $V_{RR} \ge 0$), whether one can realize a de-Sitter or not will be determined by the behaviour of the V_{NS} piece when we impose the remaining three extremization conditions.

We consider next the t^a derivatives, which can result in the following useful relation,

$$t^{a}\frac{\partial V}{\partial t^{a}} = -3V + e^{K} \left[2g^{bc}\rho_{b}\rho_{c} + \frac{16\mathcal{K}^{2}}{9}g_{bc}\tilde{\rho}^{b}\tilde{\rho}^{c} + \frac{2\mathcal{K}^{2}}{3}\tilde{\rho}^{2} + 2(\tilde{c}^{\mu\nu}t^{b}t^{c} + g^{bc}u^{\mu}u^{\nu})\rho_{b\mu}\rho_{c\nu} + \left(\mathcal{K}_{a}\mathcal{K}_{b}\tilde{c}^{\mu\nu} + \frac{16\mathcal{K}^{2}}{9}g_{ab}u^{\mu}u^{\nu}\right)\tilde{\rho}^{b}_{\mu}\tilde{\rho}^{c}_{\nu} + \frac{\mathcal{K}^{2}}{6}c^{\mu\nu}\tilde{\rho}_{\mu}\tilde{\rho}_{\nu} - 2\tilde{c}^{\mu\nu}\mathcal{K}_{b}\rho_{\mu}\tilde{\rho}^{b}_{\nu} - \frac{4\mathcal{K}}{3}\tilde{c}^{\mu\nu}t^{b}\rho_{b\mu}\tilde{\rho}_{\nu} - 4\mathcal{K}u^{\nu}\rho_{0}\tilde{\rho}_{\nu} + 4\mathcal{K}u^{\nu}\rho_{b}\tilde{\rho}^{b}_{\nu} - 4\mathcal{K}u^{\nu}\tilde{\rho}^{b}\rho_{b\nu} + 4\mathcal{K}u^{\nu}\tilde{\rho}\rho_{\nu}\right].$$

$$(3.22)$$

Note that the last line in the above expression is in fact " $+3V_{loc}$ " which gets cancelled by the respective local piece in "-3V" at the beginning of the equation. In this case, though, we could not derive an analogous expression to (3.21).

In the following subsection we will mainly focus on equations (3.19) and (3.22), which we will combine in order to determine necessary conditions for realizing a dS vacuum. In appendix A.1 the reader interested can find the explicit expressions of the four extremization conditions (3.18) expressed in terms of the flux-axion polynomials.

3.3 On generic dS no-go scenarios

As we have briefly commented in the introduction, finding dS vacua and exploring the possibility of dS no-go scenarios has been at the center of interest for decades. An important feature of the general analytical study of the vacuum equations is that it is possible to derive many No-Go conditions against de-Sitter realizations without explicitly solving the extremization conditions. Such has been the case for many type II constructions where the non-geometric fluxes are absent, e.g. see [4–9, 39]. Some examples of non-geometric type II models that led to dS no-go results have been studied in [18, 19]. In our framework this can be seen using (3.19) in combination with (3.22). In the presence of all flux quanta, the same reasoning can be generalized more systematically by using the following set of combinations of saxionic derivatives,

$$\begin{aligned} u^{\mu} \frac{\partial V}{\partial u^{\mu}} + xt^{a} \frac{\partial V}{\partial t^{a}} &= -(4+3x)V + 4e^{K} \bigg[x \left(\frac{1}{2} g^{bc} \rho_{b} \rho_{c} + \frac{4K^{2}}{9} g_{bc} \tilde{\rho}^{b} \tilde{\rho}^{c} + \frac{K^{2}}{6} \tilde{\rho}^{2} \right) \quad (3.23) \\ &+ \frac{1}{2} c^{\mu\nu} \rho_{\mu} \rho_{\nu} + \left(\frac{1}{3} + x \right) \mathcal{K} u^{\nu} \left(\tilde{\rho} \rho_{\nu} - \tilde{\rho}^{b} \rho_{b\nu} + \rho_{b} \tilde{\rho}^{b}_{\nu} - \rho_{0} \tilde{\rho}_{\nu} \right) \\ &+ \frac{1}{2} (1+x) (\tilde{c}^{\mu\nu} t^{b} t^{c} + g^{bc} u^{\mu} u^{\nu}) \rho_{b\mu} \rho_{c\nu} - \frac{1}{2} (1+x) \tilde{c}^{\mu\nu} \mathcal{K}_{b} \rho_{\mu} \tilde{\rho}^{b}_{\nu} \\ &+ \frac{1}{8} (1+2x) \left(\mathcal{K}_{a} \mathcal{K}_{b} \tilde{c}^{\mu\nu} + \frac{16\mathcal{K}^{2}}{9} g_{ab} u^{\mu} u^{\nu} \right) \tilde{\rho}^{b}_{\mu} \tilde{\rho}^{c}_{\nu} - \frac{1}{6} (1+2x) \tilde{c}^{\mu\nu} \mathcal{K} t^{b} \rho_{b\mu} \tilde{\rho}_{\nu} \\ &+ \frac{\mathcal{K}^{2}}{72} c^{\mu\nu} (1+3x) \tilde{\rho}_{\mu} \tilde{\rho}_{\nu} \bigg], \end{aligned}$$

which vanishes when evaluated at the vacuum. This relation naturally extends the results of [39] beyond the geometric flux case and can be used to derive the general expression

$$\begin{aligned} 3\langle e^{-K}V \rangle &\equiv \left(x + \frac{1}{3}\right) \left[-12\rho_0^2 + \frac{c^{\mu\nu}\tilde{\rho}_{\mu}\tilde{\rho}_{\nu}}{12} \right] + \left(x - \frac{1}{3}\right) \left[\frac{\mathcal{K}^2\tilde{\rho}^2}{3} - 3c^{\mu\nu}\rho_{\mu}\rho_{\nu} \right] \\ &+ (1 - x) \left[(\tilde{c}^{\mu\nu}t^a t^c + g^{ab}u^{\mu}u^{\nu})\rho_{b\mu}\rho_{c\nu} - \frac{4\mathcal{K}^2}{9}\tilde{\rho}^a\tilde{\rho}^a g_{ab} - \tilde{c}^{\mu\nu}\mathcal{K}_b\rho_{\mu}\tilde{\rho}^b_{\nu} \right] \\ &+ (x + 1) \left[\left(\tilde{c}^{\mu\nu}\frac{\mathcal{K}_a}{2}\frac{\mathcal{K}_b}{2} + \frac{4\mathcal{K}^2}{9}g_{ab}u^{\mu}u^{\nu} \right) \tilde{\rho}^a_{\mu}\tilde{\rho}^b_{\nu} - g^{ab}\rho_a\rho_b - \frac{\mathcal{K}}{3}\tilde{c}^{\mu\nu}t^a\rho_{a\mu}\tilde{\rho}_{\nu} \right]. \end{aligned}$$
(3.24)

Notice that the elements of the set of polynomials ρ_A are not fully independent variables as the equations of motion constrain them.⁸ Consequently, after demanding the vacuum conditions to be satisfied, there are many equivalent ways of writing the scalar potential in terms of these functions. The usefulness of relation (3.24) lies in its generality, since it has to be satisfied for any $x \in \mathbb{R}$. By carefully choosing the values of x in which the above formula is evaluated, one can arrive at several distinct simplified expressions for the scalar potential at its extremum points as a function of the flux-axion polynomials. We focus on those choices that cancel some of the terms in (3.24), that is $x = \pm 1$ and $x = \pm 1/3$. The

⁸As we discussed in section 2.4, even before imposing the equations of motion several constraints fix their relative values in terms of combinations of flux quanta.

evaluation at those points is explicitly computed in appendix B. Each of them represents a boundary between regions in the flux-axion polynomial space where different sets of terms can potentially contribute to a positive vacuum energy. Hence, analyzing them individually will provide a list of sufficient conditions to guarantee that the scalar potential is negative semi-definite. Such a list will not be exhaustive, but due to the method employed (trying to restrict the problem to lower dimensional subsectors of the space of $\rho_{\mathcal{A}}$) we expect these de Sitter no-go sufficient conditions to be the most restrictive non-trivial demands along each flux-axion direction, thus providing valuable insight in the search for de Sitter vacua.

Defining the following quantities

$$\mathcal{R} = \left(\tilde{c}^{\mu\nu}t^{a}t^{b} + g^{ab}u^{\mu}u^{\nu}\right)\rho_{a\mu}\rho_{b\nu} - \frac{4\mathcal{K}^{2}}{9}\tilde{\rho}^{a}\tilde{\rho}^{b}g_{ab}, \qquad \mathcal{S} = \tilde{c}^{\mu\nu}\mathcal{K}_{a}\rho_{\mu}\tilde{\rho}^{a}_{\nu}, \\ \tilde{\mathcal{R}} = \left(\tilde{c}^{\mu\nu}\frac{\mathcal{K}_{a}}{2}\frac{\mathcal{K}_{b}}{2} + \frac{4\mathcal{K}^{2}}{9}g_{ab}u^{\mu}u^{\nu}\right)\tilde{\rho}^{a}_{\mu}\tilde{\rho}^{b}_{\nu} - g^{ab}\rho_{a}\rho_{b}, \qquad \tilde{\mathcal{S}} = \mathcal{K}\tilde{c}^{\mu\nu}t^{a}\rho_{a\mu}\tilde{\rho}_{\nu},$$

$$(3.25)$$

we analyze how the different terms contribute to the sign of the potential in (B.1)–(B.4). The most general no-go conditions we can derive with this procedure are directly obtained from simply demanding that the expressions (B.1)–(B.4) are negative. However, it is not very illustrative due to the large number of parameters involved. Therefore, we choose to soften the no-go claims, restricting ourselves to more basic conditions, in order to provide easy-to-check rules. Motivated by the observation below (3.21) — the fact that the sign of the potential in the vacuum can only be changed by the V_{NS} piece — we consider all the terms in (B.1)–(B.4) that depend on the NSNS fluxes (i.e. $c^{\mu\nu}\rho_{\mu}\rho_{\nu}, c^{\mu\nu}\tilde{\rho}_{\mu}\tilde{\rho}_{\nu}, \mathcal{R}, \tilde{\mathcal{R}}, \tilde{\mathcal{S}}, \tilde{\mathcal{S}}$) and include the additional RR contributions in the cases where they favour de Sitter vacua.⁹ Doing so, we find the following four sufficient conditions to guarantee the absence of de Sitter vacua (note it is enough to satisfy one of them):

$$\frac{\mathcal{K}^2\tilde{\rho}^2}{9} + \tilde{\mathcal{R}} - \frac{\tilde{\mathcal{S}}}{3} + \frac{\mathcal{K}^2}{18}c^{\mu\nu}\tilde{\rho}_{\mu}\tilde{\rho}_{\nu} - c^{\mu\nu}\rho_{\mu}\rho_{\nu} \le 0\,, \qquad (3.26a)$$

$$\mathcal{R} - \mathcal{S} + 4\rho_0^2 + 2c^{\mu\nu}\rho_{\mu}\rho_{\nu} - \frac{\mathcal{K}^2}{36}c^{\mu\nu}\tilde{\rho}_{\mu}\tilde{\rho}_{\nu} \le 0, \qquad (3.26b)$$

$$\frac{\mathcal{R}}{2} - \frac{\mathcal{S}}{2} + \tilde{\mathcal{R}} - \frac{\tilde{\mathcal{S}}}{3} + \frac{\mathcal{K}^2}{24} c^{\mu\nu} \tilde{\rho}_{\mu} \tilde{\rho}_{\nu} \le 0, \qquad (3.26c)$$

$$2\mathcal{R} - 2\mathcal{S} + \tilde{\mathcal{R}} - \frac{\tilde{\mathcal{S}}}{3} + 3c^{\mu\nu}\rho_{\mu}\rho_{\nu} \le 0.$$
(3.26d)

Though these four equations encode many possible no-go results against dS vacua, it is worth studying some particular choices of fluxes to shed some light on their implications.

• Previous results in the literature can be easily recovered when we omit the non-geometric fluxes. For instance, it is well known that CY orientifold compactifications of massive type IIA with only RR and NSNS fluxes can never yield dS vacua [5]. In our formalism, this follows from (3.26c), which reduces to $0 \le 0$ after setting $f_{a\mu} = Q^a_{\mu} = R_{\mu} = 0$ (and therefore $\rho_{a\mu} = 0 = \tilde{\rho}^a_{\nu} = \tilde{\rho}_{\mu}$). On the other hand, in the absence of non-geometric

⁹In particular, this means we will ignore the terms \mathcal{R} and $\tilde{\mathcal{R}}$ when they are purely RR — the cases in which $\rho_{a\mu} = 0$ and $\tilde{\rho}^a_{\nu} = 0$ respectively — since for these particular choices of fluxes \mathcal{R} and $\tilde{\mathcal{R}}$ always favour AdS.

$ ilde{ ho}_{\mu}$	$\tilde{ ho}^a_\mu$	$ ho_{a\mu}$	$ ho_{\mu}$	No-go condition	#
		0	0	Always	1
	0	0	_	Always	2
	0	_	0	$\mathcal{R} \leq 0 \ ext{or} \ ilde{ ho} = 0$	3
0			_	$n \ge 0$ or $p = 0$	4
		0	0	$\tilde{\mathcal{R}} \leq 0 \text{ or } \rho_0 = 0$	5
	_	0	_	$\mathcal{K}^2 \tilde{ ho}^2 + 9\tilde{\mathcal{R}} - 9c^{\mu\nu}\rho_\mu\rho_\nu \le 0 ext{ or } 2\tilde{\mathcal{R}} - \mathcal{S} \le 0 ext{ or }$	6
				$4\rho_0^2 + 2c^{\mu\nu}\rho_\mu\rho_\nu - \mathcal{S} \le 0 \text{or} \tilde{\mathcal{R}} + 3c^{\mu\nu}\rho_\mu\rho_\nu - 2\mathcal{S} \le 0$	U
			0	$\mathcal{K}^2 \tilde{ ho}^2 + 9 \tilde{\mathcal{R}} \leq 0 \text{ or } \mathcal{R} + 2 \tilde{\mathcal{R}} \leq 0 \text{ or }$	7
		_	0	$\mathcal{R} + 4\rho_0^2 \le 0 \text{ or } 2\mathcal{R} + \tilde{\mathcal{R}} \le 0$	•
			_	$\mathcal{K}^{2}\tilde{\rho}^{2} + 9\tilde{\mathcal{R}} - 9c^{\mu\nu}\rho_{\mu}\rho_{\nu} \leq 0 \text{ or } 2\tilde{\mathcal{R}} + \mathcal{R} - \mathcal{S} \leq 0 \text{ or} $ $4\rho_{0}^{2} + 2c^{\mu\nu}\rho_{\mu}\rho_{\nu} + \mathcal{R} - \mathcal{S} \leq 0 \text{ or } \tilde{\mathcal{R}} + 2\mathcal{R} + 3c^{\mu\nu}\rho_{\mu}\rho_{\nu} - 2\mathcal{S} \leq 0$	8
				$4\rho_0^2 + 2c^{\mu\nu}\rho_\mu\rho_\nu + \mathcal{R} - \mathcal{S} \le 0 \text{or} \tilde{\mathcal{R}} + 2\mathcal{R} + 3c^{\mu\nu}\rho_\mu\rho_\nu - 2\mathcal{S} \le 0$	

Table 2. Summary of sufficient de Sitter no-go conditions for all the distinct basic flux-axion polynomial configurations with $R_{\mu} (\equiv \tilde{\rho}_{\mu}) = 0$.

fluxes (3.26a) becomes $\tilde{\rho}^2 \leq 0$. This also proves that there cannot be dS if the Roman's parameter $\tilde{\rho}$ vanishes, even in the presence of RR, NSNS and geometric fluxes, in agreement with what has been previously done [6–8, 11, 12]. Finally, when we turn on simultaneously the Roman's mass and the metric fluxes, (3.26c) shows us that there are still important constraints to obtain de Sitter. In particular \mathcal{R} must be positive, as was already observed in [39]. All these results are summarized in rows 1 to 4 of table 2, labelled there by a #.

- The next step in the analysis is to introduce the non-geometric fluxes Q_{μ}^{a} while keeping R_{μ} (i.e. $\tilde{\rho}_{\mu}^{a} \neq 0$ and $\tilde{\rho}_{\mu} = 0$), so there is still a local notion of geometry in the internal space. The conditions that arise from (3.26) for the different flux configurations, summarized in rows 5 to 8 of table 2, become increasingly involved. In particular, the cross term \mathcal{S} hinders the goal of making general and concise statements. It is worth mentioning, however, that when \mathcal{R} and $\tilde{\mathcal{R}}$ are negative (as it happens naturally when considering the stability-motivated Ansatz employed in the following section) de Sitter no-go's are immediately recovered for configurations 5 and 7, while configurations 6 and 8 (generic case) do not rule out de Sitter vacua as long as the Roman's parameter is not trivial.
- Finally, we set $R_{\mu} \neq 0$ which means $\tilde{\rho}_{\mu} \neq 0$. The most general no-go's we can derive with our simplified method are the relations (3.26). For some particular configurations, these can be refined and shortened to prove the absence of de Sitter in a large region of the relevant flux-axion polynomial space. A selection of such simple cases is summarized

$\tilde{ ho}_{\mu}$	$\tilde{ ho}^a_\mu$	$\rho_{a\mu}$	$ ho_{\mu}$	No-go condition	#
	0	0		Always	9
	-	0	0	$ ilde{\mathcal{R}} \leq 0 ~~ { m or} ~~ ho_0 = 0$	13
-	0		0	$6\mathcal{R} - \tilde{\mathcal{S}} \le 0 \text{ or } 4 ho_0^2 + \mathcal{R} - rac{\kappa^2}{36}c^{\mu u}\tilde{ ho}_\mu\tilde{ ho}_ u \le 0 \text{ or } \mathcal{R} \le 0$	11
	_			$6\mathcal{R} + 3\tilde{\mathcal{R}} - \tilde{\mathcal{S}} \le 0 \text{ or } \frac{\mathcal{K}^2 \tilde{\rho}^2}{9} + \tilde{\mathcal{R}} - \frac{\tilde{\mathcal{S}}}{3} + \frac{\mathcal{K}^2}{18} c^{\mu\nu} \tilde{\rho}_{\mu} \tilde{\rho}_{\nu} \le 0 \text{ or }$	15
				$3\mathcal{R} + 6\tilde{\mathcal{R}} - 2\tilde{\mathcal{S}} + \frac{\mathcal{K}^2}{4}c^{\mu\nu}\tilde{\rho}_{\mu}\tilde{\rho}_{\nu} \le 0 \text{or} 4\rho_0^2 + \mathcal{R} - \frac{\mathcal{K}^2}{36}c^{\mu\nu}\tilde{\rho}_{\mu}\tilde{\rho}_{\nu} \le 0$	10
	0	0	-	$\mathcal{K}^2 \tilde{\rho}^2 + \frac{\mathcal{K}^2}{2} c^{\mu\nu} \tilde{\rho}_{\mu} \tilde{\rho}_{\nu} - 9 c^{\mu\nu} \rho_{\mu} \rho_{\nu} \le 0 \text{or} 2\rho_0^2 + c^{\mu\nu} \rho_{\mu} \rho_{\nu} - \frac{\mathcal{K}^2}{72} c^{\mu\nu} \tilde{\rho}_{\mu} \tilde{\rho}_{\nu} \le 0$	10

Table 3. Some configurations with $R_{\mu} \equiv \tilde{\rho}_{\mu} \neq 0$ and a selection of their most simple no-go's. Numbering of axion-flux configuration has been chosen to ease comparison with table 4 in section 5.

in table 3. Remarkably, as soon as we turn on the flux ρ_{ν} the no-go conditions become much more specific, which hints at the fact that the most general configurations are loosely constrained by (3.26), leaving the door to find de Sitter still opened.¹⁰

4 Imposing the Ansatz

In the previous section, we discussed the equations of motion of non-geometric flux compactifications and the nature of the resulting vacua. We now aim to particularize these techniques to a better-controlled framework where we can push the analytical characterization even further, thus refining the no-go results and granting a better understanding of the vacua structure. To do so, we recover the Ansatz studied in [39], which is given by the following proportionality relation between the F-terms and the derivatives of the Kähler potential of moduli space

$$F_A = \{F_a, F_\mu\} = \{\alpha_K K_a, \alpha_Q K_\mu\}, \quad \alpha_K, \alpha_Q \in \mathbb{C}.$$

$$(4.1)$$

This Ansatz, motivated through (perturbative) stability arguments [90], was used in [39] to perform a detailed study of a vast class of flux vacua. In that reference, the central analysis was done by exclusively turning on RR, NSNS and geometric fluxes. In the present work, we want to go further by also including non-geometric fluxes.

Translated to the F-terms computed in (3.4)-(3.5), the Ansatz (4.1) requires

$$\rho_{a} - \mathcal{K}_{ab} \tilde{\rho}^{b}_{\mu} u^{\mu} = \mathcal{P} \partial_{a} K, \qquad \qquad \mathcal{K}_{ab} \tilde{\rho}^{b} + \rho_{a\mu} u^{\mu} = \mathcal{Q} \partial_{a} K, \qquad (4.2)$$
$$\rho_{\mu} - \frac{1}{2} \mathcal{K}_{a} \tilde{\rho}^{a}_{\mu} = \mathcal{M} \partial_{\mu} K, \qquad \qquad \rho_{a\mu} t^{a} - \frac{1}{6} \mathcal{K} \tilde{\rho}_{\mu} = \mathcal{N} \partial_{\mu} K,$$

where \mathcal{P} , \mathcal{Q} , \mathcal{M} , \mathcal{N} are real functions of the moduli. The set of conditions (4.2) can be manipulated to lead to the following four relations,

$$\mathcal{P} = -\frac{1}{3} \left(\rho_a t^a - \mathcal{K}_a \tilde{\rho}^a_\mu u^\mu \right) , \qquad \mathcal{Q} = -\frac{1}{3} \left(\mathcal{K}_a \tilde{\rho}^a + \rho_{a\mu} t^a u^\mu \right) ,$$

$$\mathcal{M} = -\frac{1}{4} \left(\rho_\mu u^\mu - \frac{1}{2} \mathcal{K}_a \tilde{\rho}^a_\mu u^\mu \right) , \quad \mathcal{N} = -\frac{1}{4} \left(\rho_{a\mu} t^a u^\mu - \frac{\mathcal{K}}{6} \tilde{\rho}_\mu u^\mu \right) .$$
(4.3)

¹⁰As an example, the de Sitter candidate found in [9] falls in the mirror type IIB version of the most general case, for which no subfamily of $\rho's$ is set to zero. The no-go employed there is a simplified version of (3.26c).

The plan now is to impose the Ansatz and to study the scalar potential and its first derivatives, to see in which cases a dS extremum can be possible. We will not look at the second derivatives of the potential — the Hessian —, which we leave for future work.

4.1 Simplified scalar potential and its derivatives

Using the expressions (4.2)-(4.3), one can simplify the superpotential (3.3) and the *F*-terms (3.4)-(3.5) to the following form

$$W = \left(\rho_0 - \frac{1}{2}\mathcal{K}_a\,\tilde{\rho}^a + 4\,\mathcal{N}\right) + i\left(\rho_a\,t^a - \frac{\mathcal{K}}{6}\,\tilde{\rho} - 4\,\mathcal{M}\right),\tag{4.4}$$
$$F_a = \frac{1}{2}\partial_a K \Big[\left(t^a\rho_a + \frac{\mathcal{K}}{6}\tilde{\rho} - 4\,\mathcal{M} + 2\,\mathcal{P}\right) - i\left(\rho_0 + \frac{3}{2}\mathcal{K}_a\tilde{\rho}^a + 4\,\mathcal{Q} - 4\mathcal{N}\right) \Big],$$
$$F_\mu = \frac{1}{2}\partial_\mu K \Big[\left(t^a\rho_a - \frac{\mathcal{K}}{6}\tilde{\rho} - 2\,\mathcal{M}\right) - i\left(\rho_0 - \frac{1}{2}\mathcal{K}_a\tilde{\rho}^a + 2\,\mathcal{N}\right) \Big].$$

As it can be seen now, the *F*-terms are manifestly proportional to their respective Kähler derivatives. Combining these relations with the standard identities: $(\partial_{\mu}K) c^{\mu\nu} (\partial_{\mu}K) = 16$ and $u^{\mu} (\partial_{\mu}K) = -4$, the expression of scalar potential can be greatly simplified. To illustrate how it works, here we note that six (out of 16) pieces of the scalar potential in (3.1), including the two cross-terms S and \tilde{S} introduced in (3.25) for which the signs are not a priory fixed, can be expressed as

$$c^{\mu\nu}\rho_{\mu}\rho_{\nu} + \tilde{c}^{\mu\nu}t^{a}t^{b}\rho_{a\mu}\rho_{b\nu} + \tilde{c}^{\mu\nu}\frac{\mathcal{K}_{a}}{2}\frac{\mathcal{K}_{b}}{2}\tilde{\rho}^{a}_{\mu}\tilde{\rho}^{b}_{\nu} + \frac{\mathcal{K}^{2}}{36}c^{\mu\nu}\tilde{\rho}_{\mu}\tilde{\rho}_{\nu} - \tilde{c}^{\mu\nu}\mathcal{K}_{a}\rho_{\mu}\tilde{\rho}^{a}_{\nu} - \frac{\mathcal{K}}{3}\tilde{c}^{\mu\nu}t^{a}\rho_{a\mu}\tilde{\rho}_{\nu} = 4\,u^{\mu}\,u^{\nu}\,\rho_{\mu}\,\rho_{\nu} + \frac{\mathcal{K}^{2}}{9}\,u^{\mu}u^{\nu}\,\tilde{\rho}_{\mu}\,\tilde{\rho}_{\nu} - 48\,(\mathcal{M}^{2} + \mathcal{N}^{2}).$$
(4.5)

Similarly, taking into account that $t^a \partial_a K = -3$ and $g^{ab} \mathcal{K}_a \mathcal{K}_b = 4/3\mathcal{K}^2$, six more terms of the scalar potential (3.1) can be written in the following manner,

$$g^{ab}\rho_{a}\rho_{b} + \frac{4\mathcal{K}^{2}}{9}g_{ab}\tilde{\rho}^{a}\tilde{\rho}^{b} + g^{ab}u^{\mu}u^{\nu}\rho_{a\mu}\rho_{b\nu} + \frac{4\mathcal{K}^{2}}{9}g_{ab}u^{\mu}u^{\nu}\tilde{\rho}^{a}_{\mu}\tilde{\rho}^{b}_{\nu} + \frac{4\mathcal{K}}{3}u^{\nu}\rho_{a}\tilde{\rho}^{a}_{\nu} - \frac{4\mathcal{K}}{3}u^{\nu}\tilde{\rho}^{a}\rho_{a\nu}$$
$$= -6\left(\mathcal{P}^{2} + \mathcal{Q}^{2}\right) + 2\left(t^{a}\rho_{a}\right)^{2} + \left(\mathcal{K}_{a}\tilde{\rho}^{a}_{\mu}u^{\mu}\right)^{2} + \left(\mathcal{K}_{a}\tilde{\rho}^{a}\right)^{2} + 2\left(t^{a}\rho_{a\mu}u^{\mu}\right)^{2}.$$
(4.6)

Merging all the above results and working with the remaining terms in ρ_0 and $\tilde{\rho}$, the full *F*-term scalar potential takes the following form

$$V = e^{K} \bigg[4 \left(\rho_{0} + \mathcal{K}_{a} \,\tilde{\rho}^{a} + 3\mathcal{Q} - 4\mathcal{N} \right)^{2} + 4 \left(\frac{\mathcal{K}}{6} \,\tilde{\rho} + \frac{1}{2} \,t^{a} \,\rho_{a} + \frac{3}{2} \mathcal{P} - 4\mathcal{M} \right)^{2}$$

$$+ 2 \left(t^{a} \,\rho_{a} \right)^{2} + \left(t^{a} \,\rho_{a} + 3 \,\mathcal{P} \right)^{2} + \left(\mathcal{K}_{a} \,\tilde{\rho}^{a} \right)^{2} + 2 \left(\mathcal{K}_{a} \,\tilde{\rho}^{a} + 3 \,\mathcal{Q} \right)^{2}$$

$$- 48 \left(\mathcal{M}^{2} + \mathcal{N}^{2} \right) - 6 \left(\mathcal{P}^{2} + \mathcal{Q}^{2} \right) \bigg].$$

$$(4.7)$$

Notably, the introduction of the Ansatz (4.2) allows us to express the scalar potential as a combination of pieces which are either positive semi-definite or negative semi-definite. This stands in stark contrast to the discussion in section 3, where the overall sign of the terms of (3.24) involving $\mathcal{R}, \tilde{\mathcal{R}}, \mathcal{S}$ and $\tilde{\mathcal{S}}$ (defined in (3.25)) was left undetermined. Finally, in appendix A.2 we also write the four extremization conditions introduced in (3.18) in terms of the Ansatz.

To summarize the story so far, using the Ansatz (4.2) we have expressed the total F-term scalar potential as well as the four types of extremization conditions in terms of eight quantities, namely $\{\mathcal{M}, \mathcal{N}, \mathcal{P}, \mathcal{Q}\}$ and $\{\rho_0, (\rho_a t^a), (\mathcal{K}_a \tilde{\rho}^a), \tilde{\rho}\}$. At first sight, it may naively look like an underdetermined system of four constraints with eight variables. However, let us note that these eight unknown quantities are not all independent, since there are several constraints due to the existence of moduli-invariant combinations of the flux-axion polynomials. We recall the previous discussion in section 2.4 for more details on the flux invariants, and their correlations with the Bianchi identities.

4.2 Insights from a couple of examples

In this subsection, we make use of the Ansatz (4.2), the reformulated scalar potential (4.7) and the four constraints arising from the derivatives of the potential (A.3), in order to study a subclass of simple but explicit models. Namely, we will focus on the SUSY vacuum as well as on the geometric scenario (where we set the non-geometric fluxes to zero). In the first of these two examples, we will limit ourselves to derive the minimum of the potential in terms of the Ansatz. Meanwhile, for the second case, we will connect our formalism to previous results in the literature [39] and will have a first encounter with the no-go obtained in section 3.3.

SUSY vacua. The supersymmetric vacua of our Ansatz could be derived as a subset of the solutions satisfying (A.3). However, it is far simpler to work directly with the *F*-flatness conditions $F_{T^a} = 0 = F_{U^{\mu}}$ using (4.4). We find

$$t^{a}\rho_{a} + \frac{\mathcal{K}}{6}\tilde{\rho} - 4\mathcal{M} + 2\mathcal{P} = 0, \qquad \rho_{0} + \frac{3}{2}\mathcal{K}_{a}\tilde{\rho}^{a} + 4\mathcal{Q} - 4\mathcal{N} = 0, \qquad (4.8)$$
$$t^{a}\rho_{a} - \frac{\mathcal{K}}{6}\tilde{\rho} - 2\mathcal{M} = 0, \qquad \rho_{0} - \frac{1}{2}\mathcal{K}_{a}\tilde{\rho}^{a} + 2\mathcal{N} = 0.$$

Subsequently, the space of solutions can be entirely described by the four parameters of our Ansatz. Given the relations above we can write

$$\rho_0 = -\frac{\mathcal{N}}{2} - \mathcal{Q}, \qquad (\rho_a t^a) = 3\mathcal{M} - \mathcal{P}, \qquad (4.9)$$
$$(\mathcal{K}_a \tilde{\rho}^a) = 3\mathcal{N} - 2\mathcal{Q}, \qquad \frac{\mathcal{K}}{6} \tilde{\rho} = \mathcal{M} - \mathcal{P},$$

which, of course, is also a solution to the four extremization conditions given in (A.3). Note that once a particular choice of flux quanta is made, the parameters $\mathcal{M}, \mathcal{N}, \mathcal{P}, \mathcal{Q}$ will also be fixed by the constraints arising from the axion-invariant relations between the different elements of ρ_A . Such a process can be observed substituting the Ansatz on the expressions (2.24) and (2.25). Subsequently, the scalar potential at the SUSY minimum is given by

$$\langle V_{SUSY} \rangle = -12 e^K \left(\mathcal{M}^2 + \mathcal{N}^2 \right).$$
 (4.10)

Geometric model. Let us now move away from the assumption of supersymmetry and consider some simplifications in the flux lattice. In the absence of non-geometric fluxes, one

has $\tilde{\rho}^a_{\mu} = 0 = \tilde{\rho}_{\mu}$, and subsequently the set of 4 constraints in (4.2) takes the shorter form,

$$\rho_{\mu} u^{\mu} = -4 \mathcal{M}, \qquad \rho_{a\mu} t^{a} u^{\mu} = -4 \mathcal{N}, \qquad (4.11)$$

$$\rho_{a} t^{a} = -3 \mathcal{P}, \qquad \mathcal{K}_{a} \tilde{\rho}^{a} = -3 \mathcal{Q} + 4 \mathcal{N}.$$

Given that only the last two of the above appear explicitly in our simplified formulation of the scalar potential and its derivatives, now we have a system of six unknowns, namely $\{\mathcal{M}, \mathcal{N}, \mathcal{P}, \mathcal{Q}, \rho_0, \tilde{\rho}\}$ which are further constrained by the set of restrictions through the Bianchi identities and the flux invariants. Using the expression (4.11) the value of the potential in the vacuum can be written as

$$\langle V_{\text{geometric}} \rangle = e^{K} \left(4\,\rho_0^2 + 16\mathcal{M}^2 + 12\mathcal{P}^2 + 3\mathcal{Q}^2 - 24\mathcal{N}\mathcal{Q} - \frac{16}{3}\mathcal{K}\tilde{\rho}\,\mathcal{M} + \frac{\mathcal{K}^2}{9}\tilde{\rho}^2 \right), \quad (4.12)$$

under the conditions

$$\mathcal{N}\mathcal{P} - \mathcal{M}\rho_0 = 0, \qquad (4.13a)$$

$$8\mathcal{N}\left(\mathcal{M}-\mathcal{P}\right)+6\mathcal{P}\left(\mathcal{Q}-\rho_{0}\right)+\frac{\mathcal{K}}{6}\,\tilde{\rho}\left(4\mathcal{N}-3\mathcal{Q}\right)=0,\qquad(4.13b)$$

$$\rho_0^2 + 2\mathcal{M}^2 + 2\mathcal{N}^2 + 3\mathcal{P}^2 + \frac{3}{4}\mathcal{Q}^2 - 5\mathcal{N}\mathcal{Q} - \mathcal{K}\tilde{\rho}\mathcal{M} + \frac{\mathcal{K}^2}{36}\tilde{\rho}^2 = 0, \qquad (4.13c)$$

$$\rho_0^2 + 4\mathcal{M}^2 - \frac{8}{3}\mathcal{N}^2 + \mathcal{P}^2 - \frac{1}{4}\mathcal{Q}^2 + \frac{2}{3}\mathcal{N}\mathcal{Q} - \frac{\mathcal{K}^2}{36}\tilde{\rho}^2 = 0, \qquad (4.13d)$$

coming from the four extremization equations introduced in (3.18).

Since this system corresponds to the geometric setup, it should reproduce some of the simple dS no-go scenarios discussed in the previous section. We know that one cannot have a dS extremum in geometric flux models without having non-trivial Romans mass terms and the geometric flux; for example, see [6-8, 11, 12, 91] and the recent works [92-94]. Although in some of these studies, sometimes dS extrema were obtained but those were found to be unstable. Under the conditions of our Ansatz (4.2), such solutions are excluded and the dS no-go gets extended, which shows the effectiveness of the Ansatz to filter out unstable flux configurations. Indeed, given the special choice of Ansatz we have imposed, it is possible to combine (4.12) with (4.13c) and (4.13d) to find the following negative semi-definite expression

$$\langle V \rangle = -\frac{e^K}{3} \left[8\rho_0^2 + 16\mathcal{P}^2 + \frac{16}{3} \left(2\mathcal{N} - \frac{\mathcal{Q}}{4} \right)^2 + \frac{5\mathcal{Q}^2}{3} \right] \le 0.$$
(4.14)

This shows that the no-go is restored as long as the conditions (4.2) are satisfied irrespective of whether the Romans mass term is zero or not! Such behaviour, which was already observed in [39], encompasses a particular realization of the no-go $\mathcal{R} \leq 0$ of configuration 4 in table 2. As we will see in more detail in the next section, this no-go is more general and excludes a more significant set of flux configurations.

For completeness, let us conclude the discussion on the geometric flux setting by mentioning that the four constraints in (4.13) have already been studied in detail in [39, 95]resulting in the identification of several classes of stable SUSY as well as non-SUSY AdS vacua. In fact, one can connect the current analysis with those of [39] by simply introducing six parameters A, B, C, D, E, F in the following manner:

$$\rho_0 = \mathcal{K} A, \qquad \mathcal{P} = \mathcal{K} B, \qquad \mathcal{Q} = -\frac{\mathcal{K}(C - F)}{3}, \qquad (4.15)$$
$$\tilde{\rho} = D, \qquad \mathcal{M} = \mathcal{K} E, \qquad \mathcal{N} = \frac{\mathcal{K} F}{4}.$$

5 dS no-go in the Ansatz

Having introduced and familiarized ourselves with the Ansatz in the previous section, we will now study how it behaves under the no-go's established in section 3. As we will see, the Ansatz will improve the analytical control and will allow us to refine the conditions required to go away from AdS vacua. We will start by discussing the different configurations of the NSNS fluxes, mirroring the general case of section 3.3. Then, we will take advantage of the simplicity of the Ansatz and systematically study every possible configuration, including all the contributions (both RR and NSNS) in the scalar potential (4.7).

5.1 Reproducing and expanding the NSNS analysis

In the context of the search of de Sitter vacua, one crucial outcome arising from the Ansatz (4.2) is given by the expressions:

$$\mathcal{R} = -\frac{5}{3} (u^{\mu} t^{a} \rho_{a\mu})^{2} - \frac{1}{3} (\mathcal{K}_{a} \tilde{\rho}^{a})^{2} + \frac{\mathcal{K}^{2}}{36} c_{\mathrm{P}}^{\mu\nu} \tilde{\rho}_{\mu} \tilde{\rho}_{\nu} , \qquad (5.1a)$$

$$\tilde{\mathcal{R}} = -\frac{5}{12} (u^{\mu} \mathcal{K}_{a} \tilde{\rho}^{a}_{\mu})^{2} - \frac{4}{3} (t^{a} \rho_{a})^{2} + c^{\mu\nu}_{P} \rho_{\mu} \rho_{\nu} , \qquad (5.1b)$$

$$\mathcal{S} = 2c_{\rm P}^{\mu\nu}\rho_{\mu}\rho_{\nu} - 3(\mathcal{K}_a u^{\mu}\tilde{\rho}^a)(\rho_{\mu}u^{\mu}), \qquad (5.1c)$$

$$\tilde{\mathcal{S}} = \frac{\mathcal{K}^2}{6} c_{\mathrm{P}}^{\mu\nu} \tilde{\rho}_{\mu} \tilde{\rho}_{\nu} - 3(u^{\mu} t^a \rho_{a\mu}) (\tilde{\rho}_{\mu} u^{\mu}), \qquad (5.1d)$$

which can be derived from the following relations, involving the primitive and non-primitive components of the moduli space metric,

$$g^{ab} = g^{ab}_{P} + g^{ab}_{NP}, \qquad g^{ab}_{P} \partial_{b} K = 0, \qquad g^{ab}_{NP} = \frac{4}{3} t^{a} t^{b};$$

$$g_{ab} = g^{P}_{ab} + g^{NP}_{ab}, \qquad g^{P}_{ab} t^{b} = 0, \qquad g^{NP}_{ab} = \frac{3}{4\mathcal{K}^{2}} \mathcal{K}_{a} \mathcal{K}_{b};$$

$$c^{\mu\nu} = c^{\mu\nu}_{P} + c^{\mu\nu}_{NP}, \qquad c^{\mu\nu}_{P} \partial_{\nu} K = 0, \qquad c^{\mu\nu}_{NP} = u^{\mu} u^{\nu}.$$

(5.2)

Using these results, one finds that the previous generic relation (3.23) simplifies to the following form:

$$3\langle e^{-K}V\rangle = \left(x+\frac{1}{3}\right) \left[-12\rho_0^2 + \frac{1}{12}(\tilde{\rho}_{\mu}u^{\mu})^2\right] + \left(x-\frac{1}{3}\right) \left[\frac{\mathcal{K}^2\tilde{\rho}^2}{3} - 3(\rho_{\mu}u^{\mu})^2\right] + (1-x) \left[-\frac{5}{3}(\rho_{a\mu}t^a u^{\mu})^2 - \frac{1}{3}(\mathcal{K}_a\tilde{\rho}^a)^2 + 3(\tilde{\rho}_{\mu}^a\mathcal{K}_a u^{\mu})\rho_{\mu}u^{\mu}\right] + (1+x) \left[-\frac{5}{12}(\tilde{\rho}_{\mu}^a u^{\mu}\mathcal{K}_a)^2 - \frac{4}{3}(t^a\rho_a)^2 + (u^{\mu}t^a\rho_{a\mu})\tilde{\rho}_{\nu}u^{\nu}\right].$$
(5.3)

where now all but two of the terms have fixed signs.

From the relations (5.1) we see that some of the no-go conditions established in tables 2 and 3 are automatically satisfied. For instance, in configurations 3, 4, 5, 7 of table 2 we saw that a dS no-go was present if $\mathcal{R} \leq 0$, $\tilde{\mathcal{R}} \leq 0$ or $\{\mathcal{R}, \tilde{\mathcal{R}}\} \leq 0$, depending on the case.¹¹ We indeed verify that this is the behaviour displayed by the Ansatz, leaving only the two possibilities 6 and 8 of table 2 for the search of dS vacua. Regarding these two cases, de Sitter is incompatible with our stability-inspired Ansatz whenever the Roman's mass vanishes.¹² This discussion is summarized in rows 1–8 of table 4, matching there the labelling we used in table 2.

A similar analysis can be performed when the non-local non-geometric flux R_{μ} is present. As it happened in the general case — recall table 3 — simple dS no-go conditions can be derived for some particular selection of fluxes, whereas for some others it is hard to extract easy-to-check equations from (5.3). The main issue in the latter configurations is the lack of general control over terms depending on S and \tilde{S} , since contrary to all others, they cannot be decomposed as sums of quantities with definite signs. We summarize this discussion in rows 9–16 of table 4. Notice that we have broadened the analysis we made in table 3, labelling the cases that appear in both tables with the same numbers.

5.2 A more comprehensive classification with all the axionic fluxes

In this subsection, we comprehensively classify the dS no-go scenarios in the Ansatz introduced in (4.2). This Ansatz, motivated by stability requirements, was characterized by four parameters constrained by the choice of flux quanta. Throughout the last two sections, we observed how it allowed us to cancel all contributions coming from the primitive sectors of the flux-axion polynomials and write the equations of motion and vacuum energy exclusively in terms of non-primitive components (see for instance (4.7), (5.3) and (A.3)).

Until now, we have focused on the NSNS sector, looking for some minimal requirements to achieve de Sitter, ignoring negative-definite terms in the scalar potential. We will now take full advantage of the powerful simplifications generated by the Ansatz, systematically considering all possible flux contributions. To shorten the expressions, we will write the scalar potential and the equations of motion explicitly in terms of the non-primitive components of the flux-axion polynomials (eight in total, one per family) eliminating the dependence $\{\mathcal{M}, \mathcal{N}, \mathcal{P}, \mathcal{Q}\}$ (4.3),

$$V = e^{K} \left[4\gamma_{1}^{2} + \frac{4}{3}\gamma_{2}^{2} + \frac{4}{3}\gamma_{3}^{2} + 4\gamma_{4}^{2} + \lambda_{1}^{2} - \frac{5}{3}\lambda_{2}^{2} - \frac{5}{3}\lambda_{3}^{2} + \lambda_{4}^{2} + 6\lambda_{1}\lambda_{3} + 6\lambda_{2}\lambda_{4}$$
(5.4)
+8\gamma_{4}\lambda_{1} - \frac{8}{3}\gamma_{3}\lambda_{2} + \frac{8}{3}\gamma_{2}\lambda_{3} - 8\gamma_{1}\lambda_{4} \right],

where we have introduced four γ_i 's corresponding to the four generalized RR axionic fluxes and another four λ_i 's corresponding to the four generalized NS-NS axionic fluxes, defined as

$$\gamma_1 = \rho_0, \qquad \gamma_2 = \rho_a t^a, \qquad \gamma_3 = \frac{1}{2} \mathcal{K}_a \tilde{\rho}^a, \qquad \gamma_4 = \frac{\mathcal{K}}{6} \tilde{\rho}, \qquad (5.5)$$
$$\lambda_1 = \rho_\mu u^\mu, \qquad \lambda_2 = \rho_{a\mu} t^a u^\mu, \qquad \lambda_3 = \frac{1}{2} \mathcal{K}_a \tilde{\rho}^a_\mu u^\mu, \qquad \lambda_4 = \frac{\mathcal{K}}{6} \tilde{\rho}_\mu u^\mu.$$

¹¹These configurations correspond to the choices $\{\tilde{\rho}_{\mu} = 0, \tilde{\rho}_{\mu}^{a} = 0, \rho_{\mu} = 0\}$, $\{\tilde{\rho}_{\mu} = 0, \tilde{\rho}_{\mu}^{a} = 0\}$, $\{\tilde{\rho}_{\mu} = 0, \rho_{\mu} = 0\}$ and $\{\tilde{\rho}_{\mu} = 0, \rho_{\mu} = 0\}$ respectively.

¹²This does not mean that $\tilde{\rho} \neq 0$ guarantees the existence of dS vacua, since using equation (5.3) one can obtain more involved constraints. We are only writing here the simplest conditions.

$ ilde{ ho}_{\mu}$	$ ilde{ ho}^a_\mu$	$ ho_{a\mu}$	$ ho_{\mu}$	de Sitter	No-go conditions	#
		0	0	No		1
	0	0	-	No		
	0		0	No		3
0		-	-	No		4
		0	0	No	$ \begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	
		0	-	Undecided	$\tilde{ ho} = 0$	6
	_	_	0	No	lo	7
		_	-	Undecided	$\tilde{ ho} = 0$	8
		0	0	No		9
	0	0	-	Undecided		10
	0		0	Undecided	$\rho_0 = 0$	11
		-	-	Undecided		$ \begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$
-		0	0	No		13
			-	Undecided		14
	-		0	Undecided	$\rho_0 = 0$	15
		_	-	Undecided		16

Table 4. Viability of de Sitter with Ansatz (4.2) for the different NSNS axion-flux configurations. In the simplest configurations, de Sitter is ruled out entirely. In four configurations, we can provide some easy-to-check sufficient conditions that also lock the system away from dS. Finally, there are four other configurations, characterized by an increasing number of flux contributions, where we are not able to make generic statements beyond (5.3).

We relegate to appendix (A.3) the usual extremization conditions (3.18) written using this language.

Thus, we have eight axionic flux-dependent quantities $\{\gamma_i, \lambda_i\}$ which can be considered as parameters¹³ to seek solutions of the vacuum equations — see (A.4) —. Taking a fully analytic approach, we will now attempt to explore more dS no-go scenarios by considering special cases in a relatively more comprehensive manner. We will do this by switching off certain flux-axion polynomials at a time.

Let us pause the discussion here to explain what this means. In principle, if one wants to look for dS extrema by *brute force* one needs to solve the vacua equations and check that at that point $V_{\text{solution}} > 0$. For any of these solutions $\{\gamma_i, \lambda_i\}$ will acquire some particular value $\{\gamma_i, \lambda_i\} = \{\gamma_i, \lambda_i\}_{\text{solution}}$, which can be equal or different from zero. In other words,

¹³Analogous to the original coefficients of the Ansatz, these parameters are not free once a particular point of the flux lattice is chosen. The invariant combinations of flux-axion polynomials constrain their values.

the 2⁸ possibilities of setting any of the eight quantities $\{\gamma_i, \lambda_i\}$ to zero or non-zero encode the full vacua landscape of the stability inspired Ansatz (4.1). Notice that setting a flux polynomial to zero does not necessarily imply switching off a particular flux, rather, it should be interpreted as describing a possible branch of solutions.¹⁴ This categorization allows us to perform a systematic search and see whether any of these branches could contain a dS vacuum. These are presented as follows:

S 8 :	$\{\gamma_1 = 0, \gamma_2 = 0, \gamma_3 = 0, \gamma_4 = 0, \lambda_1 = 0, \lambda_2 = 0, \lambda_3 = 0, \lambda_4 = 0\}$	(5.6)
S 7 :	$\{\gamma_1 \neq 0, \gamma_2 = 0, \gamma_3 = 0, \gamma_4 = 0, \lambda_1 = 0, \lambda_2 = 0, \lambda_3 = 0, \lambda_4 = 0\}$	etc.
S6:	$\{\gamma_1 \neq 0, \gamma_2 \neq 0, \gamma_3 = 0, \gamma_4 = 0, \lambda_1 = 0, \lambda_2 = 0, \lambda_3 = 0, \lambda_4 = 0\}$	etc.
$\mathbb{S5}$:	$\{\gamma_1 \neq 0, \gamma_2 \neq 0, \gamma_3 \neq 0, \gamma_4 = 0, \lambda_1 = 0, \lambda_2 = 0, \lambda_3 = 0, \lambda_4 = 0\}$	etc.
$\mathbb{S}4:$	$\{\gamma_1 \neq 0, \gamma_2 \neq 0, \gamma_3 \neq 0, \gamma_4 \neq 0, \lambda_1 = 0, \lambda_2 = 0, \lambda_3 = 0, \lambda_4 = 0\}$	etc.
$\mathbb{S}3$:	$\{\gamma_1 \neq 0, \gamma_2 \neq 0, \gamma_3 \neq 0, \gamma_4 \neq 0, \lambda_1 \neq 0, \lambda_2 = 0, \lambda_3 = 0, \lambda_4 = 0\}$	etc.
$\mathbb{S}2$:	$\{\gamma_1 \neq 0, \gamma_2 \neq 0, \gamma_3 \neq 0, \gamma_4 \neq 0, \lambda_1 \neq 0, \lambda_2 \neq 0, \lambda_3 = 0, \lambda_4 = 0\}$	etc.
$\mathbb{S}1:$	$\{\gamma_1 \neq 0, \gamma_2 \neq 0, \gamma_3 \neq 0, \gamma_4 \neq 0, \lambda_1 \neq 0, \lambda_2 \neq 0, \lambda_3 \neq 0, \lambda_4 = 0\}$	etc.
S 0 :	$\{\gamma_1 \neq 0, \gamma_2 \neq 0, \gamma_3 \neq 0, \gamma_4 \neq 0, \lambda_1 \neq 0, \lambda_2 \neq 0, \lambda_3 \neq 0, \lambda_4 \neq 0\}.$	

For this classification, we denote the class $\mathbb{S}\mathbf{n}$ to be the one in which n out of 8 parameters are set to zero, while the remaining (8 - n) parameters are non-zero. For the case of $\mathbb{S}\mathbf{0}$ we mean that all the eight quantities are non-zero, however they can still be dependent, via the Bianchi identities and tadpole cancellation conditions. In total, there can be the following number of axionic flux configurations in each of the nine sub-classes summing to a total of 256:

$$S8 := 1(1), \qquad S7 := 8(8), \qquad S6 := 28(28), \qquad S5 := 56(54), \qquad S4 := 70(68), \qquad (5.7)$$

$$S3 := 56(56), \qquad S2 := 28(12), \qquad S1 := 8(0), \qquad S0 := 1(0),$$

where the number in the respective brackets corresponds to the total number of cases which we could confirm to result in a no-go scenario for dS realization.

Demanding the extremization constraints (A.4) along with V > 0, we interestingly find that 227 (of the 256) cases correspond to the set of dS no-go scenarios. All these 227 cases are listed in table 5 of the appendix D. The new table contains and refines the results of table 4, providing valuable information regarding some of the undetermined cases. For instance, we now have no-go results for some of the configurations of row 6 of table 4 even when the no-go $\tilde{\rho} = 0$ is evaded, such as case 199 of table 5. Similarly, we have more control over the generic configuration 16 of table 4 accounting for the knowledge of the RR-sector, such as no-go 92 of table 5. From these results, we observe that even when non-geometric fluxes are introduced, simple flux configurations (in which some of the flux quanta are turned to zero or tuned so they induce cancellations in the equations of motion) are generally not interesting for the search of de Sitter.

¹⁴We use the word "possible" because it is not guaranteed that for a specific choice of values for $\{\gamma_i, \lambda_i\}$ we can find a solution to the full system of equations satisfying quantization requirements and tadpole constraints. However, the opposite is of course true, any vacua is described by some value (zero or non-zero) for $\{\gamma_i, \lambda_i\}$.

5.3 An illustrative example

There are still many configurations that have the potential to realize phenomenologically compelling vacua. Out of the 256 possible choices, for 29 of them we could not decide whether there is a dS no-go or not using our analytic approach. These 29 cases are listed in table 6, which notably include the most generic case in which none of the eight parameters are set to zero. Among them, the seemingly simplest configurations are displayed in rows 1 and 2 of table D, which in the axion-polynomial language read

$$\rho_0 = 0, \qquad \rho_a t^a = 0, \qquad \mathcal{K}_a \tilde{\rho}^a = 0, \qquad \rho_{a\mu} t^a \, u^\mu = 0, \qquad \mathcal{K} \tilde{\rho}_\mu u^\mu = 0, \qquad (5.8a)$$

$$\rho_a t^a = 0, \qquad \mathcal{K}_a \tilde{\rho}^a = 0, \qquad \mathcal{K} \tilde{\rho} = 0, \qquad \rho_\mu u^\mu = 0, \qquad \mathcal{K}_a \tilde{\rho}^a_\mu u^\mu = 0, \qquad (5.8b)$$

and correspond to $\mathcal{N} = 0 = \mathcal{Q}$ and $\mathcal{P} = 0 = \mathcal{M}$ respectively in the Ansatz (4.2). These two cases offer a relatively simple path to construct explicit vacua where dS is not openly excluded. Let us briefly illustrate how one could take advantage of the information learnt from row 1 in table 6 to proceed with an analytical search of dS vacua.

First we use (A.4) to fix some of the parameters we have not turned to zero. The simplest solution compatible with row 1 of table 6 is easily written in terms of γ_4

$$\gamma_1 = \gamma_2 = \gamma_3 = \lambda_2 = \lambda_4 = 0,$$

$$\lambda_1 = -\frac{\gamma_4}{4}, \qquad \lambda_3 = -\frac{9}{4}\gamma_4, \qquad \gamma_4 \ge 0.$$
(5.9)

Meanwhile the parameters of the Ansatz (4.2) are given by

$$\mathcal{N} = \mathcal{Q} = 0, \qquad \mathcal{P} = -\frac{3}{2}\gamma_4, \qquad \mathcal{M} = -\frac{9}{16}\gamma_4.$$
 (5.10)

Note that $\lambda_4 = 0$ allows us to turn off the non-local non-geometric fluxes ($R_{\mu} = 0$). By making this choice, γ_4 and all the other parameters of the Ansatz are determined by the value of the Romans mass. Putting together all the constraints of our Ansatz in this particular case we have

$$\rho_{a} - \mathcal{K}_{ab}\tilde{\rho}^{b}_{\mu}u^{\mu} = -\frac{3}{2}\gamma_{4}\partial_{a}K, \qquad \mathcal{K}_{b}\tilde{\rho}^{b} = 0,$$

$$\mathcal{K}_{ab}\tilde{\rho}^{b} + \rho_{a\mu}u^{\mu} = 0, \qquad \rho_{0} = 0,$$

$$\rho_{\mu} - \frac{1}{2}\mathcal{K}_{a}\tilde{\rho}^{a}\mu = -\frac{9}{16}\gamma_{4}\partial_{\mu}K, \qquad \rho_{a}t^{a} = 0,$$

$$\rho_{a\mu}t^{a} = 0.$$
(5.11)

These relations can be employed to simplify the general equations of motion (3.14)–(3.17) and the invariants of section 2.4, which are then used to fix the value of the moduli for a given choice of flux quanta.

Using the table to look for de Sitter in the most generic configurations can be very involved, given the non-trivial relation between the flux quanta and the parameters of the Ansatz. However, it is worth noting that the connection becomes more straightforward for isotropic geometries leading to STU-like models (where one denotes the chiral coordinates as $T^a = T$, $U^0 = S$ and $U^i = U$). A detailed numerical analysis may help one in exploring such cases. Given that our current work focuses on taking an analytic approach for studying a generic F-term type IIA scalar potential induced via the inclusion of (non-)geometric fluxes, we leave the numerical analysis of these undecided cases for future work.

6 Conclusions

In this paper, we have performed a systematic analysis of the de-Sitter no-go scenarios in the context of type IIA string theory, including (non-)geometric fluxes, along with the standard NS-NS and RR fluxes. To begin with, we have considered the generic F-term scalar potential, expressed in the bilinear formulation [73, 74]. This splits the dependence between saxions, encoded in a bilinear form, and axions, which are combined with the flux quanta to build a set of flux-axion polynomials. We have used such formulation to derive the extremization conditions for the scalar potential and have discussed the solutions to these conditions. Moreover, we have found that the generic extremization conditions lead to four sets of constraints, see expression (3.26), which can be useful for deriving swampland-like inequalities in the form of de-Sitter no-go equations. Studying these relations we recover many previously known no-go results as well as some new ones which show that the simplest non-geometric flux configurations are generically not enough to enable de Sitter vacua. Therefore, any chance to find a de Sitter extremum involves carefully handling many different contributions simultaneously (the standard RR and NSNS, geometric and non-geometric fluxes), significantly increasing the difficulty of having a reliable analytical control.

Given the complicated form of the generic scalar potential, some overall simplification is needed to perform any flux vacua analysis further in this generic setup. Two distinct paths could be taken. One could either perform a numerical search or make some simplifications in order to proceed with an analytic approach. We have chosen the second option and imposed an Ansatz characterized by the F-term being proportional to the respective Kähler derivatives [39]. This results in significant simplifications for the scalar potential and its derivatives, helping us to obtain a large number of dS no-go results by refining the cases found in the generic search. These no-go scenarios, classified on the basis of various axionic fluxes, are listed in table (5) and rule out many of the simplest flux configurations one can attempt to construct. Crucially, there remain 29 cases out of 256 for which no-go results could not be derived from our analytic approach. These cases, listed in table (6), are still undecided. It is worth mentioning that finding a solution to the moduli equations of motion with a positive value of the scalar potential in any of these 29 configurations does not guarantee the existence of a real de Sitter vacua. One still needs to make sure that the flux quantization and the tadpole conditions are satisfied and look for possible instabilities. Such conditions can be very restrictive and provide an additional challenge in many setups [89].

We emphasize once again that the analysis we have performed throughout this paper is subjected to the assumption of corrections to the Kähler potential being small enough so they can be ignored, especially those breaking its axionic shift. Such an assumption should always be verified once a particular vacuum has been found, which is far from trivial, as noted in [70, 96, 97]. Moving away from this regime is a compelling but challenging path to expand on the current results. Other alternative ways to make further progress using this same formalism include generalizing our Ansatz, introducing α' corrections as done in [76], or accounting for the effect of D-terms in the scalar potential.¹⁵ In any case, we hope the classification we have provided here will be helpful for future vacua searches. It can allow

¹⁵This last option would come at the cost of reducing the number of stabilized moduli, as discussed in [89].

to take controlled cancellations on the vacuum equations without turning off the option to find de Sitter from the start. Complementary to this, it would be interesting to perform a numerical exploration of some of the simplest configurations of this flux landscape subset. They offer a compelling avenue for building explicit models of phenomenological interest.

Acknowledgments

We would like to thank Fernando Marchesano for useful discussions, and collaboration at the initial stage of this project. We would like to thank Xin Gao, Thomas Grimm, George Leontaris, Erik Plauschinn and Filippo Revello for useful discussions and comments. The work of D.P. is supported by the Dutch Research Council (NWO) via a Vici grant. The work of J.Q. is supported by the Israel Science Foundation (grant No. 741/20) and by the German Research Foundation through a German-Israeli Project Cooperation (DIP) grant "Holography and the Swampland". P.S. would like to thank the *Department of Science and Technology (DST), India* for the kind support.

A Derivatives of the potential

A.1 General equations

In this appendix we explicitly give the four extremization conditions

$$u^{\sigma} \frac{\partial V}{\partial \xi^{\sigma}} = 0 \equiv \mathbf{C1}, \quad t^{a} \frac{\partial V}{\partial b^{a}} = 0 \equiv \mathbf{C2}, \quad u^{\mu} \frac{\partial V}{\partial u^{\mu}} = 0 \equiv \mathbf{C3}, \quad t^{a} \frac{\partial V}{\partial t^{a}} = 0 \equiv \mathbf{C4}, \quad (A.1)$$

in terms of the flux-axion polynomials introduced in (2.15) and (2.16)

$$\begin{aligned} \mathbf{C1} : & 8\rho_{0}\rho_{\sigma}u^{\sigma} + 2\,g^{ab}\rho_{a}\rho_{b\sigma}u^{\sigma} + \frac{8\mathcal{K}^{2}}{9}g_{ab}\tilde{\rho}^{a}\tilde{\rho}^{b}u^{\sigma} + \frac{2\mathcal{K}^{2}}{9}\tilde{\rho}_{\sigma}\tilde{\rho}u^{\sigma} = 0, \end{aligned} \tag{A.2} \\ \mathbf{C2} : & 8\,\rho_{0}\rho_{a}\,t^{a} + 4\,\rho_{a}\,t^{a}\,\mathcal{K}_{b}\,\tilde{\rho}^{b} - \frac{4\mathcal{K}}{3}\,\rho_{a}\,\tilde{\rho}^{a} + \frac{2\mathcal{K}}{3}\,\tilde{\rho}\,\mathcal{K}_{a}\,\tilde{\rho}^{a} + 2\,c^{\mu\nu}\,\rho_{a\mu}\,t^{a}\,\rho_{\nu} \\ & -\mathcal{K}\,\tilde{c}^{\mu\nu}\rho_{\mu}\tilde{\rho}_{\nu} + c^{\mu\nu}\rho_{a\mu}\,t^{a}\tilde{\rho}^{b}_{\nu}\,\mathcal{K}_{b} - \frac{4\mathcal{K}}{3}\,u^{\mu}u^{\nu}\tilde{\rho}^{a}_{\mu}\,\rho_{a\nu} + \frac{\mathcal{K}}{6}\,c^{\mu\nu}\mathcal{K}_{a}\,\tilde{\rho}^{a}_{\mu}\,\tilde{\rho}_{\nu} = 0, \end{aligned} \\ \mathbf{C3} : & 16\rho_{0}^{2} + 4g^{ab}\rho_{a}\rho_{b} + \frac{16\mathcal{K}^{2}}{9}g_{ab}\tilde{\rho}^{a}\tilde{\rho}^{b} + \frac{4\mathcal{K}^{2}}{9}\tilde{\rho}^{2} + 2c^{\mu\nu}\rho_{\mu}\rho_{\nu} + 2(\tilde{c}^{\mu\nu}t^{a}t^{b} + g^{ab}u^{\mu}u^{\nu})\rho_{a\mu}\rho_{b\nu} \\ & + \left(\frac{1}{2}\tilde{c}^{\mu\nu}\mathcal{K}_{a}\mathcal{K}_{b} + \frac{8\mathcal{K}^{2}}{9}g_{ab}u^{\mu}u^{\nu}\right)\tilde{\rho}^{a}_{\mu}\tilde{\rho}^{b}_{\nu} + \frac{\mathcal{K}^{2}}{18}c^{\mu\nu}\tilde{\rho}_{\mu}\tilde{\rho}_{\nu} - 2\tilde{c}^{\mu\nu}\mathcal{K}_{a}\rho_{\mu}\tilde{\rho}^{a}_{\nu} - \frac{2\mathcal{K}}{3}\tilde{c}^{\mu\nu}t^{a}\rho_{a\mu}\tilde{\rho}_{\nu} \\ & -4\mathcal{K}u^{\nu}\rho_{0}\tilde{\rho}_{\nu} + 4\mathcal{K}u^{\nu}\rho_{a}\tilde{\rho}^{a}_{\mu} - 4\mathcal{K}u^{\nu}\tilde{\rho}^{a}\rho_{a\nu} + 4\mathcal{K}u^{\nu}\tilde{\rho}\rho_{\nu} = 0, \end{aligned} \\ \mathbf{C4} : & 12\rho_{0}^{2} + g^{ab}\rho_{a}\rho_{b} - \frac{4\mathcal{K}^{2}}{9}g_{ab}\tilde{\rho}^{a}\tilde{\rho}^{b} - \frac{\mathcal{K}^{2}}{3}\tilde{\rho}^{2} + 3c^{\mu\nu}\rho_{\mu}\rho_{\nu} - \tilde{c}^{\mu\nu}\mathcal{K}_{a}\rho_{\mu}\tilde{\rho}^{a}_{\nu} + \frac{\mathcal{K}}{3}\tilde{c}^{\mu\nu}t^{a}\rho_{a\mu}\tilde{\rho}_{\nu} = 0. \end{aligned}$$

All the possible extrema in the presence of generic (non-)geometric fluxes will be contained in the set of solutions of these four constraints.

A.2 Imposing the Ansatz

Under the Ansatz presented in section 4 the equations (A.1), take the following form

$$\begin{aligned} \mathbf{C1} : & 4\rho_0 \left(\frac{\rho_a t^a}{2} + \frac{3\mathcal{P}}{2} - 4\mathcal{M} \right) - \frac{2\mathcal{K}}{3} \tilde{\rho} \left(\mathcal{K}_a \tilde{\rho}^a + 3\mathcal{Q} - 4\mathcal{N} \right) & (A.3) \\ & - \left(\rho_a t^a \right) \left(\mathcal{K}_a \tilde{\rho}^a \right) - 4\mathcal{Q} \left(\rho_a t^a \right) + \mathcal{P} \left(\mathcal{K}_a \tilde{\rho}^a \right) = 0, \end{aligned}$$

$$\begin{aligned} \mathbf{C2} : & 2\left(\rho_a t^a \right) \left(\rho_0 - 4\mathcal{Q} + 5\mathcal{N} \right) + \left(\mathcal{K}_a \tilde{\rho}^a \right) \left(\frac{\mathcal{K}}{6} \tilde{\rho} - 8\mathcal{P} + 20\mathcal{M} \right) \\ & + 6\left(5\mathcal{N}\mathcal{P} + 10\mathcal{M}\mathcal{Q} - 12\mathcal{M}\mathcal{N} - 4\mathcal{P}\mathcal{Q} \right) - 2\left(\mathcal{K}_a \tilde{\rho}^a \right) \left(\rho_a t^a \right) = 0, \end{aligned}$$

$$\begin{aligned} \mathbf{C3} : & \rho_0^2 + \frac{3}{4} \left(\rho_a t^a \right)^2 + \left(\mathcal{K}_a \tilde{\rho}^a \right)^2 + \frac{\mathcal{K}^2}{36} \tilde{\rho}^2 + 2\mathcal{M}^2 + 2\mathcal{N}^2 + \frac{3\mathcal{P}^2}{2} + 6\mathcal{Q}^2 \\ & -6\mathcal{M}\mathcal{P} - 12\mathcal{N}\mathcal{Q} - 6\rho_0 \mathcal{N} + \frac{9\rho_0 \mathcal{Q}}{2} - \mathcal{K}\mathcal{M}\tilde{\rho} + \frac{3\mathcal{K}}{8} \mathcal{P} \tilde{\rho} \\ & + \left(\rho_a t^a \right) \left(\frac{\mathcal{K}\tilde{\rho}}{8} - 2\mathcal{M} + \frac{7\mathcal{P}}{4} \right) + \left(\mathcal{K}_a \tilde{\rho}^a \right) \left(\frac{3\rho_0}{2} - 4\mathcal{N} + \frac{19\mathcal{Q}}{4} \right) = 0, \end{aligned}$$

$$\end{aligned}$$

$$\begin{aligned} \mathbf{C4} : & \rho_0^2 + \frac{1}{3} \left(\rho_a t^a \right)^2 - \frac{11}{12} \left(\mathcal{K}_a \tilde{\rho}^a \right)^2 - \frac{\mathcal{K}^2}{36} \tilde{\rho}^2 + 4\mathcal{M}^2 - 4\mathcal{N}^2 + 2\mathcal{P}^2 - 8\mathcal{Q}^2 \\ & -6\mathcal{M}\mathcal{P} + 12\mathcal{N}\mathcal{Q} + 4 \left(\mathcal{N} - \frac{4}{3}\mathcal{Q} \right) \left(\mathcal{K}_a \tilde{\rho}^a \right) - 2 \left(\mathcal{M} - \frac{2\mathcal{P}}{3} \right) \left(\rho_a t^a \right) = 0. \end{aligned}$$

A.3 Non-primitive decomposition

Finally, we write again the conditions (A.1) using the $\{\gamma, \lambda\}$ language introduced in section 5.2

$$\begin{aligned} \mathbf{C1} &: \quad 4\gamma_{1}\lambda_{1} + \frac{4\gamma_{2}\lambda_{2}}{3} + \frac{4\gamma_{3}\lambda_{3}}{3} + 4\gamma_{4}\lambda_{4} = 0, \end{aligned} \tag{A.4} \\ \mathbf{C2} &: \quad 2\gamma_{1}\gamma_{2} + \frac{4\gamma_{2}\gamma_{3}}{3} + 2\gamma_{3}\gamma_{4} + \frac{\lambda_{1}\lambda_{2}}{2} + \frac{9\lambda_{1}\lambda_{4}}{2} - \frac{\lambda_{2}\lambda_{3}}{6} + \frac{\lambda_{3}\lambda_{4}}{2} = 0, \end{aligned} \\ \mathbf{C3} &: \quad \gamma_{1}^{2} - \frac{3\gamma_{1}\lambda_{4}}{2} + \frac{\gamma_{2}^{2}}{3} + \frac{\gamma_{2}\lambda_{3}}{2} + \frac{\gamma_{3}^{2}}{3} - \frac{\gamma_{3}\lambda_{2}}{2} + \gamma_{4}^{2} + \frac{3\gamma_{4}\lambda_{1}}{2} + \frac{\lambda_{1}^{2}}{8} + \frac{3\lambda_{1}\lambda_{3}}{4} \\ &\quad -\frac{5\lambda_{2}^{2}}{24} + \frac{3\lambda_{2}\lambda_{4}}{4} - \frac{5\lambda_{3}^{2}}{24} + \frac{\lambda_{4}^{2}}{8} = 0, \end{aligned}$$

$$\mathbf{C4} : \quad \gamma_{1}^{2} + \frac{\gamma_{2}^{2}}{9} - \frac{\gamma_{3}^{2}}{9} - \gamma_{4}^{2} + \frac{\lambda_{1}^{2}}{4} + \frac{\lambda_{1}\lambda_{3}}{2} - \frac{5\lambda_{2}^{2}}{36} - \frac{\lambda_{2}\lambda_{4}}{2} + \frac{5\lambda_{3}^{2}}{36} - \frac{\lambda_{4}^{2}}{4} = 0. \end{aligned}$$

B Auxiliary equations for dS no-go

In this appendix we present the explicit form of the expression (3.24) for the particular choices of values $x = \pm 1$ and $x = \pm 1/3$. As explained in the main text, the equation (3.24) is always satisfied in the vacuum, independently of the values of x. Nevertheless, some specific selections of x can be more illuminating in the search for dS no-go.

From x = 1 we obtain the following constraint,

$$\langle V \rangle = -\frac{4e^{K}}{3} \bigg[4\rho_{0}^{2} + \frac{1}{2}g^{ab}\rho_{a}\rho_{b} - \frac{\mathcal{K}^{2}}{18}\tilde{\rho}^{2} + \frac{1}{2}c^{\mu\nu}\rho_{\mu}\rho_{\nu}$$

$$-\frac{1}{2} \left(\tilde{c}^{\mu\nu}\frac{\mathcal{K}_{a}}{2}\frac{\mathcal{K}_{b}}{2} + \frac{4\mathcal{K}^{2}}{9}g_{ab}u^{\mu}u^{\nu} \right) \tilde{\rho}_{\mu}^{a}\tilde{\rho}_{\nu}^{b} + \frac{\mathcal{K}}{6}\tilde{c}^{\mu\nu}t^{a}\rho_{a\mu}\tilde{\rho}_{\nu} - \frac{\mathcal{K}^{2}}{36}c^{\mu\nu}\tilde{\rho}_{\mu}\tilde{\rho}_{\nu} \bigg],$$
(B.1)

whereas from x = -1 one has

$$\langle V \rangle = -\frac{4e^{K}}{3} \bigg[-2\rho_{0}^{2} + \frac{2\mathcal{K}^{2}}{9} g_{ab} \tilde{\rho}^{a} \tilde{\rho}^{b} + \frac{\mathcal{K}^{2}}{9} \tilde{\rho}^{2} - c^{\mu\nu} \rho_{\mu} \rho_{\nu} - \frac{1}{2} \left(\tilde{c}^{\mu\nu} t^{a} t^{b} + g^{ab} u^{\mu} u^{\nu} \right) \rho_{a\mu} \rho_{b\nu} + \frac{1}{2} \tilde{c}^{\mu\nu} \mathcal{K}_{a} \rho_{\mu} \tilde{\rho}_{\nu}^{a} + \frac{\mathcal{K}^{2}}{72} c^{\mu\nu} \tilde{\rho}_{\mu} \tilde{\rho}_{\nu} \bigg].$$
(B.2)

Similarly the cases with x = 1/3 and x = -1/3 result in the following respective relations,

$$\langle V \rangle = -\frac{4e^{K}}{3} \left[2\rho_{0}^{2} + \frac{1}{3}g^{ab}\rho_{a}\rho_{b} + \frac{2\mathcal{K}^{2}}{27}g_{ab}\tilde{\rho}^{a}\tilde{\rho}^{b} - \frac{1}{6}\left(\tilde{c}^{\mu\nu}t^{a}t^{b} + g^{ab}u^{\mu}u^{\nu}\right)\rho_{a\mu}\rho_{b\nu}$$
(B.3)

$$+\frac{1}{6}\tilde{c}^{\mu\nu}\mathcal{K}_{a}\rho_{\mu}\tilde{\rho}^{a}_{\nu}-\frac{1}{3}\left(\tilde{c}^{\mu\nu}\frac{\mathcal{K}_{a}}{2}\frac{\mathcal{K}_{b}}{2}+\frac{4\mathcal{K}^{2}}{9}g_{ab}u^{\mu}u^{\nu}\right)\tilde{\rho}^{a}_{\mu}\tilde{\rho}^{b}_{\nu}+\frac{\mathcal{K}}{9}\tilde{c}^{\mu\nu}t^{a}\rho_{a\mu}\tilde{\rho}_{\nu}-\frac{\mathcal{K}^{2}}{72}c^{\mu\nu}\tilde{\rho}_{\mu}\tilde{\rho}_{\nu}\bigg],$$

and

$$\langle V \rangle = -\frac{4e^{K}}{3} \left[\frac{1}{6} g^{ab} \rho_{a} \rho_{b} + \frac{4\mathcal{K}^{2}}{27} g_{ab} \tilde{\rho}^{a} \tilde{\rho}^{b} + \frac{\mathcal{K}^{2}}{18} \tilde{\rho}^{2} - \frac{1}{2} c^{\mu\nu} \rho_{\mu} \rho_{\nu} \right.$$

$$\left. -\frac{1}{3} \left(\tilde{c}^{\mu\nu} t^{a} t^{b} + g^{ab} u^{\mu} u^{\nu} \right) \rho_{a\mu} \rho_{b\nu} + \frac{1}{3} \tilde{c}^{\mu\nu} \mathcal{K}_{a} \rho_{\mu} \tilde{\rho}^{a}_{\nu} \right.$$

$$\left. -\frac{1}{6} \left(\tilde{c}^{\mu\nu} \frac{\mathcal{K}_{a}}{2} \frac{\mathcal{K}_{b}}{2} + \frac{4\mathcal{K}^{2}}{9} g_{ab} u^{\mu} u^{\nu} \right) \tilde{\rho}^{a}_{\mu} \tilde{\rho}^{b}_{\nu} + \frac{\mathcal{K}}{18} \tilde{c}^{\mu\nu} t^{a} \rho_{a\mu} \tilde{\rho}_{\nu} \right] .$$

$$(B.4)$$

C Intermediate results for scalar potential simplifications using the Ansatz

In this section, after imposing the Ansatz given in eqs. (4.2), we present some intermediate steps which can be relevant for simplifying the scalar potential pieces collected in eqs. (3.1)–(3.2). Some of those are presented as follows,

$$\left(\tilde{c}^{\mu\nu} t^{a} t^{b} + g^{ab} u^{\mu} u^{\nu} \right) \rho_{a\mu} \rho_{b\nu} - \tilde{c}^{\mu\nu} \mathcal{K}_{a} \rho_{\mu} \tilde{\rho}_{\nu}^{a} = \frac{4\mathcal{K}^{2}}{9} g_{ab} \tilde{\rho}^{a} \tilde{\rho}^{b} - 2\tilde{c}^{\mu\nu} \rho_{\mu} \rho_{\nu} + \frac{\mathcal{K}^{2}}{36} \tilde{c}^{\mu\nu} \tilde{\rho}_{\mu} \tilde{\rho}_{\nu} - 48\mathcal{N}^{2} + 12\mathcal{Q}^{2} + 24\mathcal{M} \rho_{\mu} u^{\mu} + (\mathcal{K}_{a} \tilde{\rho}^{a})^{2} - \frac{4\mathcal{K}}{3} \mathcal{N} \tilde{\rho}_{\mu} u^{\mu} + 8\mathcal{Q}(\mathcal{K}_{a} \tilde{\rho}^{a}), \left(\tilde{c}^{\mu\nu} \frac{\mathcal{K}_{a}}{2} \frac{\mathcal{K}_{b}}{2} + \frac{4\mathcal{K}^{2}}{9} g_{ab} u^{\mu} u^{\nu} \right) \tilde{\rho}_{\mu}^{a} \tilde{\rho}_{\nu}^{b} - \tilde{c}^{\mu\nu} t^{a} \frac{\mathcal{K}}{3} \rho_{a\mu} \tilde{\rho}_{\nu} = g^{ab} \rho_{a} \rho_{b} + \tilde{c}^{\mu\nu} \rho_{\mu} \rho_{\nu} - \frac{\mathcal{K}^{2}}{18} \tilde{c}^{\mu\nu} \tilde{\rho}_{\mu} \tilde{\rho}_{\nu} - 48\mathcal{M}^{2} + 3\mathcal{P}^{2} + 8\mathcal{M} \rho_{\mu} u^{\mu} - (t^{a} \rho_{a})^{2} - 4\mathcal{K} \mathcal{N} \tilde{\rho}_{\mu} u^{\mu} + 2\mathcal{P}(t^{a} \rho_{a}).$$
 (C.1)

Note that the sum of the above two pieces helps in eliminating the presence of $c^{\mu\nu}$ metric in the V_{NS} piece given in eq. (3.2), which subsequently simplifies to the following form,

$$V_{NS}^{*} = e^{K} \bigg[g^{ab} \rho_{a} \rho_{b} + \frac{4\mathcal{K}^{2}}{9} g_{ab} \tilde{\rho}^{a} \tilde{\rho}^{b} + 4 (\rho_{\mu} u^{\mu})^{2} + \frac{\mathcal{K}^{2}}{9} (\tilde{\rho}_{\mu} u^{\mu})^{2}$$

$$-48\mathcal{N}^{2} + 12\mathcal{Q}^{2} + 32\mathcal{M}\rho_{\mu} u^{\mu} + (\mathcal{K}_{a} \tilde{\rho}^{a})^{2} - \frac{16\mathcal{K}}{3} \mathcal{N} \tilde{\rho}_{\mu} u^{\mu} + 8\mathcal{Q}(\mathcal{K}_{a} \tilde{\rho}^{a})$$

$$-48\mathcal{M}^{2} + 3\mathcal{P}^{2} - (t^{a} \rho_{a})^{2} + 2\mathcal{P}(t^{a} \rho_{a}) \bigg].$$
(C.2)

The first two pieces in the above expression are precisely the generalized RR flux contributions from the generalized version of the F_2 and F_4 form fluxes in the presence of (non-)geometric fluxes. Similarly, the V_{loc} piece in eq. (3.2) simplifies to the following form,

$$V_{loc}^{*} = -e^{K} \left[\frac{4\mathcal{K}}{3} \rho_{0}(\tilde{\rho}_{\mu}u^{\mu}) - \frac{4\mathcal{K}}{3} \tilde{\rho}(\rho_{\mu}u^{\mu}) + 2g^{ab}\rho_{a}\rho_{b} + \frac{8\mathcal{K}^{2}}{9}g_{ab}\tilde{\rho}^{a}\tilde{\rho}^{b} \right.$$
(C.3)
+4(t^{a} \rho_{a})^{2} + 2(\mathcal{K}_{a} \,\tilde{\rho}^{a})^{2} - 4\mathcal{P}(\rho_{a} \,t^{a}) - 4\mathcal{Q}(\mathcal{K}_{a} \,\tilde{\rho}^{a}) \right],

where we remark that none of the terms appearing in V_{loc}^* involve $c^{\mu\nu}$ either and, as a result of this simplification, the scalar potential in eqs. (3.1)–(3.2) can be expressed without using any of the metrics $c^{\mu\nu}$, g_{ab} and g^{ab} . This is because the pieces with g_{ab} and its inverse appearing in the scalar potential precisely cancel out in the combination $V = V_{RR}^* + V_{NS}^* + V_{loc}^*$. Moreover, using eq. (4.2) the terms involving $(\rho_{\mu}u^{\mu})$ and $(\tilde{\rho}_{\mu}u^{\mu})$ in both the eqs. (C.2) and (C.3) can further be expressed in terms of $\mathcal{M}, \mathcal{N}, \mathcal{P}, \mathcal{Q}$ and $(\rho_a t^a)$ and $(\mathcal{K}_a \tilde{\rho}^a)$. Hence, a direct implication of using the Ansatz in eq. (4.2) is the fact that it helps in expressing the total *F*-term scalar potential in terms of eight parameters, namely $\{\mathcal{M}, \mathcal{N}, \mathcal{P}, \mathcal{Q}\}$ and $\{\rho_0, (\rho_a t^a), (\mathcal{K}_a \tilde{\rho}^a), \tilde{\rho}\}$, and one can completely get rid of the metric. This is reflected in the collection (4.7).

Finally, let us also mention that the two relations in eq. (C.1) help to eliminate the presence of all the involved metrics, namely $c^{\mu\nu}$, g_{ab} and g^{ab} , within the four extremization conditions given in eq. (A.2) and the same subsequently leads to the four relations collected in the eq. (A.3).

Sr. No.	Vanishing Axionic Flux parameters	$\exists dS$
1	{ $\gamma_4 = 0, \gamma_3 = 0, \gamma_2 = 0, \gamma_1 = 0, \lambda_1 = 0, \lambda_2 = 0, \lambda_3 = 0, \lambda_4 = 0$ }	False
2	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \ \gamma_3 = 0, \ \gamma_2 = 0, \ \gamma_1 = 0, \ \lambda_1 = 0, \ \lambda_2 = 0, \ \lambda_3 = 0\}$	False
3	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \ \gamma_3 = 0, \ \gamma_2 = 0, \ \gamma_1 = 0, \ \lambda_1 = 0, \ \lambda_2 = 0, \ \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False
4	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \ \gamma_3 = 0, \ \gamma_2 = 0, \ \gamma_1 = 0, \ \lambda_1 = 0, \ \lambda_3 = 0, \ \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False
5	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \ \gamma_3 = 0, \ \gamma_2 = 0, \ \gamma_1 = 0, \ \lambda_2 = 0, \ \lambda_3 = 0, \ \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False
6	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \ \gamma_3 = 0, \ \gamma_2 = 0, \ \lambda_1 = 0, \ \lambda_2 = 0, \ \lambda_3 = 0, \ \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False
7	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \gamma_3 = 0, \gamma_1 = 0, \lambda_1 = 0, \lambda_2 = 0, \lambda_3 = 0, \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False
8	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \ \gamma_2 = 0, \ \gamma_1 = 0, \ \lambda_1 = 0, \ \lambda_2 = 0, \ \lambda_3 = 0, \ \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False
9	$\{\gamma_3 = 0, \ \gamma_2 = 0, \ \gamma_1 = 0, \ \lambda_1 = 0, \ \lambda_2 = 0, \ \lambda_3 = 0, \ \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False
10	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \ \gamma_3 = 0, \ \gamma_2 = 0, \ \gamma_1 = 0, \ \lambda_1 = 0, \ \lambda_2 = 0\}$	False
11	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \ \gamma_3 = 0, \ \gamma_2 = 0, \ \gamma_1 = 0, \ \lambda_1 = 0, \ \lambda_3 = 0\}$	False
12	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \ \gamma_3 = 0, \ \gamma_2 = 0, \ \gamma_1 = 0, \ \lambda_1 = 0, \ \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False
13	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \ \gamma_3 = 0, \ \gamma_2 = 0, \ \gamma_1 = 0, \ \lambda_2 = 0, \ \lambda_3 = 0\}$	False
14	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \ \gamma_3 = 0, \ \gamma_2 = 0, \ \gamma_1 = 0, \ \lambda_2 = 0, \ \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False
15	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \ \gamma_3 = 0, \ \gamma_2 = 0, \ \gamma_1 = 0, \ \lambda_3 = 0, \ \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False

D List of possible dS no-go scenarios

Continued on next page

Sr. No.	Vanishing Axionic Flux parameters	∃dS
16	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \gamma_3 = 0, \gamma_2 = 0, \lambda_1 = 0, \lambda_2 = 0, \lambda_3 = 0\}$	False
17	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \gamma_3 = 0, \gamma_2 = 0, \lambda_1 = 0, \lambda_2 = 0, \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False
18	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \gamma_3 = 0, \gamma_2 = 0, \lambda_1 = 0, \lambda_3 = 0, \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False
19	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \gamma_3 = 0, \gamma_2 = 0, \lambda_2 = 0, \lambda_3 = 0, \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False
20	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \gamma_3 = 0, \gamma_1 = 0, \lambda_1 = 0, \lambda_2 = 0, \lambda_3 = 0\}$	False
21	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \gamma_3 = 0, \gamma_1 = 0, \lambda_1 = 0, \lambda_2 = 0, \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False
22	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \gamma_3 = 0, \gamma_1 = 0, \lambda_1 = 0, \lambda_3 = 0, \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False
23	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \gamma_3 = 0, \gamma_1 = 0, \lambda_2 = 0, \lambda_3 = 0, \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False
24	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \gamma_3 = 0, \lambda_1 = 0, \lambda_2 = 0, \lambda_3 = 0, \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False
25	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \gamma_2 = 0, \gamma_1 = 0, \lambda_1 = 0, \lambda_2 = 0, \lambda_3 = 0\}$	False
26	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \gamma_2 = 0, \gamma_1 = 0, \lambda_1 = 0, \lambda_2 = 0, \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False
27	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \gamma_2 = 0, \gamma_1 = 0, \lambda_1 = 0, \lambda_3 = 0, \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False
28	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \gamma_2 = 0, \gamma_1 = 0, \lambda_2 = 0, \lambda_3 = 0, \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False
29	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \gamma_2 = 0, \lambda_1 = 0, \lambda_2 = 0, \lambda_3 = 0, \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False
30	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \gamma_1 = 0, \lambda_1 = 0, \lambda_2 = 0, \lambda_3 = 0, \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False
31	$\{\gamma_3 = 0, \gamma_2 = 0, \gamma_1 = 0, \lambda_1 = 0, \lambda_2 = 0, \lambda_3 = 0\}$	False
32	$\{\gamma_3 = 0, \gamma_2 = 0, \gamma_1 = 0, \lambda_1 = 0, \lambda_2 = 0, \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False
33	$\{\gamma_3 = 0, \gamma_2 = 0, \gamma_1 = 0, \lambda_1 = 0, \lambda_3 = 0, \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False
34	$\{\gamma_3 = 0, \gamma_2 = 0, \gamma_1 = 0, \lambda_2 = 0, \lambda_3 = 0, \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False
35	$\{\gamma_3 = 0, \gamma_2 = 0, \lambda_1 = 0, \lambda_2 = 0, \lambda_3 = 0, \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False
36	$\{\gamma_3 = 0, \gamma_1 = 0, \lambda_1 = 0, \lambda_2 = 0, \lambda_3 = 0, \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False
37	$\{\gamma_2 = 0, \gamma_1 = 0, \lambda_1 = 0, \lambda_2 = 0, \lambda_3 = 0, \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False
38	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \gamma_3 = 0, \gamma_2 = 0, \gamma_1 = 0, \lambda_1 = 0\}$	False
39	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \gamma_3 = 0, \gamma_2 = 0, \gamma_1 = 0, \lambda_2 = 0\}$	False
40	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \gamma_3 = 0, \gamma_2 = 0, \gamma_1 = 0, \lambda_3 = 0\}$	False
41	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \gamma_3 = 0, \gamma_2 = 0, \gamma_1 = 0, \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False
42	$\{\gamma_4=0,\gamma_3=0,\gamma_2=0,\lambda_1=0,\lambda_2=0\}$	False
43	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \gamma_3 = 0, \gamma_2 = 0, \lambda_1 = 0, \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False
44	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \gamma_3 = 0, \gamma_2 = 0, \lambda_2 = 0, \lambda_3 = 0\}$	False
45	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \gamma_3 = 0, \gamma_2 = 0, \lambda_2 = 0, \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False
46	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \gamma_3 = 0, \gamma_2 = 0, \lambda_3 = 0, \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False
47	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \gamma_3 = 0, \gamma_1 = 0, \lambda_1 = 0, \lambda_2 = 0\}$	False
48	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \gamma_3 = 0, \gamma_1 = 0, \lambda_1 = 0, \lambda_3 = 0\}$	False
49	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \gamma_3 = 0, \gamma_1 = 0, \lambda_1 = 0, \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False
50	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \gamma_3 = 0, \gamma_1 = 0, \lambda_2 = 0, \lambda_3 = 0\}$	False
51	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \gamma_3 = 0, \gamma_1 = 0, \lambda_2 = 0, \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False

Sr. No.	Vanishing Axionic Flux parameters	$\exists dS$
52	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \gamma_3 = 0, \gamma_1 = 0, \lambda_3 = 0, \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False
53	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \gamma_3 = 0, \lambda_1 = 0, \lambda_2 = 0, \lambda_3 = 0\}$	False
54	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \gamma_3 = 0, \lambda_1 = 0, \lambda_2 = 0, \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False
55	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \gamma_3 = 0, \lambda_1 = 0, \lambda_3 = 0, \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False
56	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \gamma_3 = 0, \lambda_2 = 0, \lambda_3 = 0, \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False
57	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \gamma_2 = 0, \gamma_1 = 0, \lambda_1 = 0, \lambda_2 = 0\}$	False
58	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \gamma_2 = 0, \gamma_1 = 0, \lambda_1 = 0, \lambda_3 = 0\}$	False
59	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \gamma_2 = 0, \gamma_1 = 0, \lambda_1 = 0, \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False
60	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \gamma_2 = 0, \gamma_1 = 0, \lambda_2 = 0, \lambda_3 = 0\}$	False
61	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \gamma_2 = 0, \gamma_1 = 0, \lambda_2 = 0, \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False
62	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \gamma_2 = 0, \gamma_1 = 0, \lambda_3 = 0, \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False
63	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \ \gamma_2 = 0, \ \lambda_1 = 0, \ \lambda_2 = 0, \ \lambda_3 = 0\}$	False
64	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \ \gamma_2 = 0, \ \lambda_1 = 0, \ \lambda_2 = 0, \ \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False
65	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \ \gamma_2 = 0, \ \lambda_1 = 0, \ \lambda_3 = 0, \ \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False
66	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \ \gamma_2 = 0, \ \lambda_2 = 0, \ \lambda_3 = 0, \ \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False
67	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \ \gamma_1 = 0, \ \lambda_1 = 0, \ \lambda_2 = 0, \ \lambda_3 = 0\}$	False
68	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \ \gamma_1 = 0, \ \lambda_1 = 0, \ \lambda_2 = 0, \ \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False
69	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \ \gamma_1 = 0, \ \lambda_1 = 0, \ \lambda_3 = 0, \ \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False
70	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \ \gamma_1 = 0, \ \lambda_2 = 0, \ \lambda_3 = 0, \ \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False
71	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \lambda_1 = 0, \lambda_2 = 0, \lambda_3 = 0, \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False
72	$\{\gamma_3 = 0, \ \gamma_2 = 0, \ \gamma_1 = 0, \ \lambda_1 = 0, \ \lambda_2 = 0\}$	False
73	$\{\gamma_3 = 0, \ \gamma_2 = 0, \ \gamma_1 = 0, \ \lambda_1 = 0, \ \lambda_3 = 0\}$	False
74	$\{\gamma_3 = 0, \ \gamma_2 = 0, \ \gamma_1 = 0, \ \lambda_1 = 0, \ \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False
75	$\{\gamma_3 = 0, \ \gamma_2 = 0, \ \gamma_1 = 0, \ \lambda_2 = 0, \ \lambda_3 = 0\}$	False
76	$\{\gamma_3 = 0, \ \gamma_2 = 0, \ \gamma_1 = 0, \ \lambda_3 = 0, \ \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False
77	$\{\gamma_3 = 0, \ \gamma_2 = 0, \ \lambda_1 = 0, \ \lambda_2 = 0, \ \lambda_3 = 0\}$	False
78	$\{\gamma_3 = 0, \ \gamma_2 = 0, \ \lambda_1 = 0, \ \lambda_2 = 0, \ \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False
79	$\{\gamma_3 = 0, \ \gamma_2 = 0, \ \lambda_1 = 0, \ \lambda_3 = 0, \ \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False
80	$\{\gamma_3 = 0, \ \gamma_2 = 0, \ \lambda_2 = 0, \ \lambda_3 = 0, \ \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False
81	$\{\gamma_3 = 0, \ \gamma_1 = 0, \ \lambda_1 = 0, \ \lambda_2 = 0, \ \lambda_3 = 0\}$	False
82	$\{\gamma_3 = 0, \ \gamma_1 = 0, \ \lambda_1 = 0, \ \lambda_2 = 0, \ \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False
83	$\{\gamma_3 = 0, \ \gamma_1 = 0, \ \lambda_1 = 0, \ \lambda_3 = 0, \ \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False
84	$\{\gamma_3 = 0, \ \gamma_1 = 0, \ \lambda_2 = 0, \ \lambda_3 = 0, \ \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False
85	$\{\gamma_3 = 0, \lambda_1 = 0, \lambda_2 = 0, \lambda_3 = 0, \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False
86	$\{\gamma_2 = 0, \ \gamma_1 = 0, \ \lambda_1 = 0, \ \lambda_2 = 0, \ \lambda_3 = 0\}$	False
87	$\{\gamma_2 = 0, \ \gamma_1 = 0, \ \lambda_1 = 0, \ \lambda_2 = 0, \ \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False

Sr. No.	Vanishing Axionic Flux parameters	$\exists dS$
88	$\{\gamma_2 = 0, \ \gamma_1 = 0, \ \lambda_1 = 0, \ \lambda_3 = 0, \ \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False
89	$\{\gamma_2 = 0, \ \gamma_1 = 0, \ \lambda_2 = 0, \ \lambda_3 = 0, \ \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False
90	$\{\gamma_2 = 0, \lambda_1 = 0, \lambda_2 = 0, \lambda_3 = 0, \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False
91	$\{\gamma_1 = 0, \lambda_1 = 0, \lambda_2 = 0, \lambda_3 = 0, \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False
92	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \gamma_3 = 0, \gamma_2 = 0, \gamma_1 = 0\}$	False
93	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \gamma_3 = 0, \gamma_2 = 0, \lambda_2 = 0\}$	False
94	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \gamma_3 = 0, \gamma_2 = 0, \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False
95	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \gamma_3 = 0, \gamma_1 = 0, \lambda_1 = 0\}$	False
96	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \gamma_3 = 0, \gamma_1 = 0, \lambda_2 = 0\}$	False
97	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \gamma_3 = 0, \gamma_1 = 0, \lambda_3 = 0\}$	False
98	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \gamma_3 = 0, \gamma_1 = 0, \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False
99	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \gamma_3 = 0, \lambda_1 = 0, \lambda_2 = 0\}$	False
100	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \gamma_3 = 0, \lambda_1 = 0, \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False
101	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \gamma_3 = 0, \lambda_2 = 0, \lambda_3 = 0\}$	False
102	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \gamma_3 = 0, \lambda_2 = 0, \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False
103	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \gamma_3 = 0, \lambda_3 = 0, \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False
104	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \ \gamma_2 = 0, \ \gamma_1 = 0, \ \lambda_1 = 0\}$	False
105	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \ \gamma_2 = 0, \ \gamma_1 = 0, \ \lambda_2 = 0\}$	False
106	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \ \gamma_2 = 0, \ \gamma_1 = 0, \ \lambda_3 = 0\}$	False
107	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \ \gamma_2 = 0, \ \gamma_1 = 0, \ \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False
108	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \ \gamma_2 = 0, \ \lambda_1 = 0, \ \lambda_2 = 0\}$	False
109	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \ \gamma_2 = 0, \ \lambda_1 = 0, \ \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False
110	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \ \gamma_2 = 0, \ \lambda_2 = 0, \ \lambda_3 = 0\}$	False
111	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \ \gamma_2 = 0, \ \lambda_2 = 0, \ \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False
112	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \ \gamma_2 = 0, \ \lambda_3 = 0, \ \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False
113	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \ \gamma_1 = 0, \ \lambda_1 = 0, \ \lambda_2 = 0\}$	False
114	$\{\gamma_4=0, \ \gamma_1=0, \ \lambda_1=0, \ \lambda_3=0\}$	False
115	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \gamma_1 = 0, \lambda_1 = 0, \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False
116	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \ \gamma_1 = 0, \ \lambda_2 = 0, \ \lambda_3 = 0\}$	False
117	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \ \gamma_1 = 0, \ \lambda_2 = 0, \ \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False
118	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \ \gamma_1 = 0, \ \lambda_3 = 0, \ \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False
119	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \lambda_1 = 0, \lambda_2 = 0, \lambda_3 = 0\}$	False
120	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \lambda_1 = 0, \lambda_2 = 0, \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False
121	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \lambda_1 = 0, \lambda_3 = 0, \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False
122	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \lambda_2 = 0, \lambda_3 = 0, \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False
123	$\{\gamma_3 = 0, \gamma_2 = 0, \gamma_1 = 0, \lambda_1 = 0\}$	False

Sr. No.	Vanishing Axionic Flux parameters	$\exists dS$
124	$\{\gamma_3 = 0, \ \gamma_2 = 0, \ \gamma_1 = 0, \ \lambda_3 = 0\}$	False
125	$\{\gamma_3 = 0, \gamma_2 = 0, \lambda_1 = 0, \lambda_2 = 0\}$	False
126	$\{\gamma_3 = 0, \gamma_2 = 0, \lambda_1 = 0, \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False
127	$\{\gamma_3 = 0, \gamma_2 = 0, \lambda_2 = 0, \lambda_3 = 0\}$	False
128	$\{\gamma_3 = 0, \gamma_2 = 0, \lambda_3 = 0, \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False
129	$\{\gamma_3 = 0, \gamma_1 = 0, \lambda_1 = 0, \lambda_2 = 0\}$	False
130	$\{\gamma_3 = 0, \gamma_1 = 0, \lambda_1 = 0, \lambda_3 = 0\}$	False
131	$\{\gamma_3 = 0, \gamma_1 = 0, \lambda_1 = 0, \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False
132	$\{\gamma_3 = 0, \gamma_1 = 0, \lambda_2 = 0, \lambda_3 = 0\}$	False
133	$\{\gamma_3 = 0, \gamma_1 = 0, \lambda_3 = 0, \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False
134	$\{\gamma_3 = 0, \lambda_1 = 0, \lambda_2 = 0, \lambda_3 = 0\}$	False
135	$\{\gamma_3 = 0, \lambda_1 = 0, \lambda_2 = 0, \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False
136	$\{\gamma_3 = 0, \lambda_1 = 0, \lambda_3 = 0, \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False
137	$\{\gamma_3 = 0, \lambda_2 = 0, \lambda_3 = 0, \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False
138	$\{\gamma_2 = 0, \gamma_1 = 0, \lambda_1 = 0, \lambda_2 = 0\}$	False
139	$\{\gamma_2 = 0, \gamma_1 = 0, \lambda_1 = 0, \lambda_3 = 0\}$	False
140	$\{\gamma_2 = 0, \gamma_1 = 0, \lambda_1 = 0, \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False
141	$\{\gamma_2 = 0, \gamma_1 = 0, \lambda_2 = 0, \lambda_3 = 0\}$	False
142	$\{\gamma_2 = 0, \gamma_1 = 0, \lambda_3 = 0, \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False
143	$\{\gamma_2 = 0, \lambda_1 = 0, \lambda_2 = 0, \lambda_3 = 0\}$	False
144	$\{\gamma_2 = 0, \lambda_1 = 0, \lambda_2 = 0, \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False
145	$\{\gamma_2 = 0, \lambda_1 = 0, \lambda_3 = 0, \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False
146	$\{\gamma_2 = 0, \lambda_2 = 0, \lambda_3 = 0, \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False
147	$\{\gamma_1 = 0, \lambda_1 = 0, \lambda_2 = 0, \lambda_3 = 0\}$	False
148	$\{\gamma_1 = 0, \lambda_1 = 0, \lambda_2 = 0, \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False
149	$\{\gamma_1 = 0, \lambda_1 = 0, \lambda_3 = 0, \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False
150	$\{\gamma_1 = 0, \lambda_2 = 0, \lambda_3 = 0, \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False
151	$\{\lambda_1 = 0, \lambda_2 = 0, \lambda_3 = 0, \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False
152	$\{\gamma_2 = 0, \ \gamma_1 = 0, \ \lambda_2 = 0, \ \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False
153	$\{\gamma_3 = 0, \ \gamma_2 = 0, \ \lambda_2 = 0, \ \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False
154	$\{\gamma_3 = 0, \ \gamma_2 = 0, \ \lambda_1 = 0, \ \lambda_3 = 0\}$	False
155	$\{\gamma_3 = 0, \ \gamma_2 = 0, \ \gamma_1 = 0, \ \lambda_2 = 0\}$	False
156	$\{\gamma_3 = 0, \ \gamma_2 = 0, \ \gamma_1 = 0, \ \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False
157	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \ \gamma_3 = 0, \ \lambda_1 = 0, \ \lambda_3 = 0\}$	False
158	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \ \gamma_3 = 0, \ \gamma_2 = 0, \ \lambda_3 = 0\}$	False
159	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \ \gamma_3 = 0, \ \gamma_2 = 0, \ \lambda_1 = 0\}$	False

Sr. No.	Vanishing Axionic Flux parameters	$\exists dS$
160	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \gamma_3 = 0, \gamma_1 = 0\}$	False
161	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \gamma_3 = 0, \lambda_2 = 0\}$	False
162	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \gamma_3 = 0, \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False
163	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \gamma_2 = 0, \gamma_1 = 0\}$	False
164	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \ \gamma_2 = 0, \ \lambda_2 = 0\}$	False
165	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \ \gamma_2 = 0, \ \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False
166	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \gamma_1 = 0, \lambda_1 = 0\}$	False
167	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \gamma_1 = 0, \lambda_2 = 0\}$	False
168	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \gamma_1 = 0, \lambda_3 = 0\}$	False
169	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \gamma_1 = 0, \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False
170	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \lambda_1 = 0, \lambda_2 = 0\}$	False
171	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \lambda_1 = 0, \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False
172	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \lambda_2 = 0, \lambda_3 = 0\}$	False
173	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \lambda_2 = 0, \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False
174	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \lambda_3 = 0, \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False
175	$\{\gamma_3 = 0, \gamma_1 = 0, \lambda_1 = 0\}$	False
176	$\{\gamma_3=0,\gamma_1=0,\lambda_3=0\}$	False
177	$\{\gamma_3 = 0, \lambda_1 = 0, \lambda_2 = 0\}$	False
178	$\{\gamma_3 = 0, \lambda_1 = 0, \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False
179	$\{\gamma_3 = 0, \lambda_2 = 0, \lambda_3 = 0\}$	False
180	$\{\gamma_3 = 0, \lambda_3 = 0, \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False
181	$\{\gamma_2 = 0, \gamma_1 = 0, \lambda_1 = 0\}$	False
182	$\{\gamma_2=0, \gamma_1=0, \lambda_3=0\}$	False
183	$\{\gamma_2 = 0, \lambda_1 = 0, \lambda_2 = 0\}$	False
184	$\{\gamma_2 = 0, \lambda_1 = 0, \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False
185	$\{\gamma_2 = 0, \lambda_2 = 0, \lambda_3 = 0\}$	False
186	$\{\gamma_2 = 0, \lambda_3 = 0, \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False
187	$\{\gamma_1 = 0, \lambda_1 = 0, \lambda_2 = 0\}$	False
188	$\{\gamma_1 = 0, \lambda_1 = 0, \lambda_3 = 0\}$	False
189	$\{\gamma_1=0,\lambda_1=0,\lambda_4=0\}$	False
190	$\{\gamma_1 = 0, \lambda_2 = 0, \lambda_3 = 0\}$	False
191	$\{\gamma_1 = 0, \lambda_3 = 0, \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False
192	$\{\lambda_1 = 0, \lambda_2 = 0, \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False
193	$\{\lambda_1=0,\lambda_3=0,\lambda_4=0\}$	False
194	$\{\gamma_1 = 0, \ \lambda_2 = 0, \ \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False
195	$\{\gamma_2 = 0, \ \lambda_2 = 0, \ \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False

Sr. No.	Vanishing Axionic Flux parameters	$\exists dS$
196	$\{\gamma_2 = 0, \ \lambda_1 = 0, \ \lambda_3 = 0\}$	False
197	$\{\gamma_2 = 0, \ \gamma_1 = 0, \ \lambda_2 = 0\}$	False
198	$\{\gamma_2 = 0, \ \gamma_1 = 0, \ \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False
199	$\{\gamma_3 = 0, \ \lambda_2 = 0, \ \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False
200	$\{\gamma_3 = 0, \ \lambda_1 = 0, \ \lambda_3 = 0\}$	False
201	$\{\gamma_3 = 0, \ \gamma_1 = 0, \ \lambda_2 = 0\}$	False
202	$\{\gamma_3 = 0, \ \gamma_1 = 0, \ \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False
203	$\{\gamma_3 = 0, \ \gamma_2 = 0, \ \lambda_2 = 0\}$	False
204	$\{\gamma_3 = 0, \ \gamma_2 = 0, \ \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False
205	$\{\gamma_3 = 0, \ \gamma_2 = 0, \ \lambda_3 = 0\}$	False
206	$\{\gamma_3 = 0, \ \gamma_2 = 0, \ \lambda_1 = 0\}$	False
207	$\{\gamma_3 = 0, \ \gamma_2 = 0, \ \gamma_1 = 0\}$	False
208	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \ \lambda_1 = 0, \ \lambda_3 = 0\}$	False
209	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \ \gamma_2 = 0, \ \lambda_3 = 0\}$	False
210	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \ \gamma_2 = 0, \ \lambda_1 = 0\}$	False
211	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \ \gamma_3 = 0, \ \lambda_3 = 0\}$	False
212	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \ \gamma_3 = 0, \ \lambda_1 = 0\}$	False
213	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \ \gamma_3 = 0, \ \gamma_2 = 0\}$	False
214	$\{\lambda_2 = 0, \lambda_3 = 0, \lambda_4 = 0\}$	False
215	$\{\lambda_1 = 0, \lambda_2 = 0, \lambda_3 = 0\}$	False
216	$\{\lambda_1=0,\lambda_2=0\}$	False
217	$\{\lambda_1=0,\ \lambda_3=0\}$	False
218	$\{\lambda_1=0,\ \lambda_4=0\}$	False
219	$\{\lambda_2=0,\ \lambda_3=0\}$	False
220	$\{\lambda_2=0,\ \lambda_4=0\}$	False
221	$\{\lambda_3=0,\lambda_4=0\}$	False
222	$\{\gamma_4=0,\lambda_2=0\}$	False
223	$\{\gamma_4=0,\lambda_4=0\}$	False
224	$\{\gamma_3=0,\ \lambda_2=0\}$	False
225	$\{\gamma_2=0,\ \lambda_3=0\}$	False
226	$\{\gamma_1=0,\ \lambda_1=0\}$	False
227	$\{\gamma_1=0,\ \lambda_3=0\}$	False

Table 5. List of 227 flux configurations with their respective vanishing flux-dependent parameters leading to dS no-go scenarios. The parameters not mentioned in a given configuration are considered to be non-zero.

Sr. No.	Vanishing Axionic Flux parameters
1 1	
	$\{\gamma_1 = 0, \ \gamma_2 = 0, \ \gamma_3 = 0, \ \lambda_2 = 0, \ \lambda_4 = 0\}$
2	$\{\gamma_2 = 0, \ \gamma_3 = 0, \ \gamma_4 = 0, \ \lambda_1 = 0, \ \lambda_3 = 0\}$
3	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \ \gamma_2 = 0, \ \lambda_1 = 0, \ \lambda_3 = 0\}$
4	$\{\gamma_3 = 0, \ \gamma_1 = 0, \ \lambda_2 = 0, \ \lambda_4 = 0\}$
5	$\{\gamma_1=0,\ \lambda_2=0\}$
6	$\{\gamma_1 = 0, \ \lambda_4 = 0\}$
7	$\{\gamma_2 = 0, \ \lambda_4 = 0\}$
8	$\{\gamma_2=0,\ \lambda_1=0\}$
9	$\{\gamma_2=0,\ \gamma_1=0\}$
10	$\{\gamma_2 = 0, \ \lambda_2 = 0\}$
11	$\{\gamma_3=0,\ \lambda_4=0\}$
12	$\{\gamma_3=0,\ \lambda_3=0\}$
13	$\{\gamma_3=0,\ \lambda_1=0\}$
14	$\{\gamma_3 = 0, \ \gamma_1 = 0\}$
15	$\{\gamma_3 = 0, \ \gamma_2 = 0\}$
16	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \ \lambda_3 = 0\}$
17	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \ \lambda_1 = 0\}$
18	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \ \gamma_1 = 0\}$
19	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \ \gamma_2 = 0\}$
20	$\{\gamma_4 = 0, \ \gamma_3 = 0\}$
21	$\{\lambda_2 = 0\}$
22	$\{\lambda_4 = 0\}$
23	$\{\lambda_3 = 0\}$
24	$\{\lambda_1 = 0\}$
25	$\{\gamma_1 = 0\}$
26	$\{\gamma_2 = 0\}$
27	$\{\gamma_3=0\}$
28	$\{\gamma_4 = 0\}$
29	None of the λ_i 's and γ_i 's are set to zero.

Table 6. List of 29 flux configurations with their respective vanishing flux dependent parameters for which dS no-go case could not be found. The parameters not mentioned in a given configuration are considered to be non-zero.

Open Access. This article is distributed under the terms of the Creative Commons Attribution License (CC-BY4.0), which permits any use, distribution and reproduction in any medium, provided the original author(s) and source are credited.

References

- J.M. Maldacena and C. Nunez, Supergravity description of field theories on curved manifolds and a no go theorem, Int. J. Mod. Phys. A 16 (2001) 822 [hep-th/0007018] [INSPIRE].
- H. Ooguri and C. Vafa, On the Geometry of the String Landscape and the Swampland, Nucl. Phys. B 766 (2007) 21 [hep-th/0605264] [INSPIRE].

- [3] O. DeWolfe, A. Giryavets, S. Kachru and W. Taylor, Type IIA moduli stabilization, JHEP 07 (2005) 066 [hep-th/0505160] [INSPIRE].
- M.P. Hertzberg et al., Searching for Inflation in Simple String Theory Models: An Astrophysical Perspective, Phys. Rev. D 76 (2007) 103521 [arXiv:0709.0002] [INSPIRE].
- [5] M.P. Hertzberg, S. Kachru, W. Taylor and M. Tegmark, Inflationary Constraints on Type IIA String Theory, JHEP 12 (2007) 095 [arXiv:0711.2512] [INSPIRE].
- S.S. Haque, G. Shiu, B. Underwood and T. Van Riet, Minimal simple de Sitter solutions, Phys. Rev. D 79 (2009) 086005 [arXiv:0810.5328] [INSPIRE].
- [7] R. Flauger, S. Paban, D. Robbins and T. Wrase, Searching for slow-roll moduli inflation in massive type IIA supergravity with metric fluxes, Phys. Rev. D 79 (2009) 086011
 [arXiv:0812.3886] [INSPIRE].
- [8] C. Caviezel et al., On the Cosmology of Type IIA Compactifications on SU(3)-structure Manifolds, JHEP 04 (2009) 010 [arXiv:0812.3551] [INSPIRE].
- [9] B. de Carlos, A. Guarino and J.M. Moreno, Flux moduli stabilisation, Supergravity algebras and no-go theorems, JHEP 01 (2010) 012 [arXiv:0907.5580] [INSPIRE].
- [10] C. Caviezel, T. Wrase and M. Zagermann, Moduli Stabilization and Cosmology of Type IIB on SU(2)-Structure Orientifolds, JHEP 04 (2010) 011 [arXiv:0912.3287] [INSPIRE].
- [11] U.H. Danielsson, S.S. Haque, G. Shiu and T. Van Riet, Towards Classical de Sitter Solutions in String Theory, JHEP 09 (2009) 114 [arXiv:0907.2041] [INSPIRE].
- U.H. Danielsson, P. Koerber and T. Van Riet, Universal de Sitter solutions at tree-level, JHEP 05 (2010) 090 [arXiv:1003.3590] [INSPIRE].
- T. Wrase and M. Zagermann, On Classical de Sitter Vacua in String Theory, Fortsch. Phys. 58 (2010) 906 [arXiv:1003.0029] [INSPIRE].
- [14] G. Shiu and Y. Sumitomo, Stability Constraints on Classical de Sitter Vacua, JHEP 09 (2011)
 052 [arXiv:1107.2925] [INSPIRE].
- [15] K. Dasgupta et al., de Sitter Vacua in Type IIB String Theory: Classical Solutions and Quantum Corrections, JHEP 07 (2014) 054 [arXiv:1402.5112] [INSPIRE].
- [16] U.H. Danielsson and T. Van Riet, What if string theory has no de Sitter vacua?, Int. J. Mod. Phys. D 27 (2018) 1830007 [arXiv:1804.01120] [INSPIRE].
- [17] H. Bernardo, S. Brahma, K. Dasgupta and R. Tatar, Crisis on Infinite Earths: Short-lived de Sitter Vacua in the String Theory Landscape, JHEP 04 (2021) 037 [arXiv:2009.04504]
 [INSPIRE].
- P. Shukla, Rigid nongeometric orientifolds and the swampland, Phys. Rev. D 103 (2021) 086010
 [arXiv:1909.10993] [INSPIRE].
- [19] P. Shukla, T -dualizing de Sitter no-go scenarios, Phys. Rev. D 102 (2020) 026014 [arXiv:1909.08630] [INSPIRE].
- [20] E. Palti, The Swampland: Introduction and Review, Fortsch. Phys. 67 (2019) 1900037
 [arXiv:1903.06239] [INSPIRE].
- M. van Beest, J. Calderón-Infante, D. Mirfendereski and I. Valenzuela, Lectures on the Swampland Program in String Compactifications, Phys. Rept. 989 (2022) 1 [arXiv:2102.01111]
 [INSPIRE].

- [22] N.B. Agmon, A. Bedroya, M.J. Kang and C. Vafa, Lectures on the string landscape and the Swampland, arXiv:2212.06187 [INSPIRE].
- [23] G. Obied, H. Ooguri, L. Spodyneiko and C. Vafa, *De Sitter Space and the Swampland*, arXiv:1806.08362 [INSPIRE].
- [24] S.K. Garg and C. Krishnan, Bounds on Slow Roll and the de Sitter Swampland, JHEP 11 (2019)
 075 [arXiv:1807.05193] [INSPIRE].
- [25] H. Ooguri, E. Palti, G. Shiu and C. Vafa, Distance and de Sitter Conjectures on the Swampland, Phys. Lett. B 788 (2019) 180 [arXiv:1810.05506] [INSPIRE].
- [26] M. Cicoli et al., De Sitter vs Quintessence in String Theory, Fortsch. Phys. 67 (2019) 1800079 [arXiv:1808.08967] [INSPIRE].
- [27] M. Cicoli et al., String cosmology: From the early universe to today, Phys. Rept. 1059 (2024) 1
 [arXiv:2303.04819] [INSPIRE].
- [28] J.-P. Derendinger, C. Kounnas, P.M. Petropoulos and F. Zwirner, Fluxes and gaugings: N = 1 effective superpotentials, Fortsch. Phys. 53 (2005) 926 [hep-th/0503229] [INSPIRE].
- [29] G. Dall'Agata, G. Villadoro and F. Zwirner, Type-IIA flux compactifications and N = 4 gauged supergravities, JHEP 08 (2009) 018 [arXiv:0906.0370] [INSPIRE].
- [30] G. Aldazabal, D. Marques, C. Nunez and J.A. Rosabal, On type IIB moduli stabilization and N = 4, 8 supergravities, Nucl. Phys. B 849 (2011) 80 [arXiv:1101.5954] [INSPIRE].
- [31] G. Aldazabal, W. Baron, D. Marques and C. Nunez, The effective action of Double Field Theory, JHEP 11 (2011) 052 [Erratum ibid. 11 (2011) 109] [arXiv:1109.0290] [INSPIRE].
- [32] D. Andriot et al., A geometric action for non-geometric fluxes, Phys. Rev. Lett. 108 (2012) 261602 [arXiv:1202.3060] [INSPIRE].
- [33] R. Blumenhagen, X. Gao, D. Herschmann and P. Shukla, Dimensional Oxidation of Non-geometric Fluxes in Type II Orientifolds, JHEP 10 (2013) 201 [arXiv:1306.2761] [INSPIRE].
- [34] J.-P. Derendinger, C. Kounnas, P.M. Petropoulos and F. Zwirner, Superpotentials in IIA compactifications with general fluxes, Nucl. Phys. B 715 (2005) 211 [hep-th/0411276] [INSPIRE].
- [35] G. Villadoro and F. Zwirner, N = 1 effective potential from dual type-IIA D6/O6 orientifolds with general fluxes, JHEP 06 (2005) 047 [hep-th/0503169] [INSPIRE].
- [36] G. Aldazabal, P.G. Camara, A. Font and L.E. Ibanez, More dual fluxes and moduli fixing, JHEP 05 (2006) 070 [hep-th/0602089] [INSPIRE].
- [37] M. Ihl and T. Wrase, Towards a Realistic Type IIA T^{**}6/Z(4) Orientifold Model with Background Fluxes. Part 1. Moduli Stabilization, JHEP 07 (2006) 027 [hep-th/0604087]
 [INSPIRE].
- [38] M. Ihl, D. Robbins and T. Wrase, Toroidal orientifolds in IIA with general NS-NS fluxes, JHEP 08 (2007) 043 [arXiv:0705.3410] [INSPIRE].
- [39] F. Marchesano, D. Prieto, J. Quirant and P. Shukla, Systematics of Type IIA moduli stabilisation, JHEP 11 (2020) 113 [arXiv:2007.00672] [INSPIRE].
- [40] P. Shukla, A symplectic rearrangement of the four dimensional non-geometric scalar potential, JHEP 11 (2015) 162 [arXiv:1508.01197] [INSPIRE].
- [41] R. Blumenhagen, A. Font and E. Plauschinn, Relating double field theory to the scalar potential of N = 2 gauged supergravity, JHEP **12** (2015) 122 [arXiv:1507.08059] [INSPIRE].

- [42] X. Gao, P. Shukla and R. Sun, Symplectic formulation of the type IIA nongeometric scalar potential, Phys. Rev. D 98 (2018) 046009 [arXiv:1712.07310] [INSPIRE].
- [43] P. Shukla, Reading off the nongeometric scalar potentials via the topological data of the compactifying Calabi-Yau manifolds, Phys. Rev. D 94 (2016) 086003 [arXiv:1603.01290]
 [INSPIRE].
- [44] P. Shukla, Dictionary for the type II nongeometric flux compactifications, Phys. Rev. D 103 (2021) 086009 [arXiv:1909.07391] [INSPIRE].
- [45] G.K. Leontaris and P. Shukla, Symplectic formulation of the type IIB scalar potential with U-dual fluxes, Phys. Rev. D 109 (2024) 066018 [arXiv:2309.08664] [INSPIRE].
- [46] E. Plauschinn, Non-geometric backgrounds in string theory, Phys. Rept. 798 (2019) 1
 [arXiv:1811.11203] [INSPIRE].
- [47] J. Shelton, W. Taylor and B. Wecht, Nongeometric flux compactifications, JHEP 10 (2005) 085 [hep-th/0508133] [INSPIRE].
- [48] P.G. Camara, A. Font and L.E. Ibanez, Fluxes, moduli fixing and MSSM-like vacua in a simple IIA orientifold, JHEP 09 (2005) 013 [hep-th/0506066] [INSPIRE].
- [49] B. Wecht, Lectures on Nongeometric Flux Compactifications, Class. Quant. Grav. 24 (2007) S773
 [arXiv:0708.3984] [INSPIRE].
- [50] D. Robbins and T. Wrase, D-terms from generalized NS-NS fluxes in type II, JHEP 12 (2007)
 058 [arXiv:0709.2186] [INSPIRE].
- [51] S. Lanza, F. Marchesano, L. Martucci and D. Sorokin, How many fluxes fit in an EFT?, JHEP 10 (2019) 110 [arXiv:1907.11256] [INSPIRE].
- [52] D.M. Lombardo, F. Riccioni and S. Risoli, P fluxes and exotic branes, JHEP 12 (2016) 114 [arXiv:1610.07975] [INSPIRE].
- [53] D.M. Lombardo, F. Riccioni and S. Risoli, Non-geometric fluxes & tadpole conditions for exotic branes, JHEP 10 (2017) 134 [arXiv:1704.08566] [INSPIRE].
- [54] P. Shukla, Revisiting the two formulations of Bianchi identities and their implications on moduli stabilization, JHEP 08 (2016) 146 [arXiv:1603.08545] [INSPIRE].
- [55] X. Gao, P. Shukla and R. Sun, On Missing Bianchi Identities in Cohomology Formulation, Eur. Phys. J. C 79 (2019) 781 [arXiv:1805.05748] [INSPIRE].
- [56] G. Aldazabal, P.G. Camara and J.A. Rosabal, Flux algebra, Bianchi identities and Freed-Witten anomalies in F-theory compactifications, Nucl. Phys. B 814 (2009) 21 [arXiv:0811.2900] [INSPIRE].
- [57] B. de Carlos, A. Guarino and J.M. Moreno, Complete classification of Minkowski vacua in generalised flux models, JHEP 02 (2010) 076 [arXiv:0911.2876] [INSPIRE].
- [58] U. Danielsson and G. Dibitetto, On the distribution of stable de Sitter vacua, JHEP 03 (2013)
 018 [arXiv:1212.4984] [INSPIRE].
- [59] J. Blaback, U. Danielsson and G. Dibitetto, Fully stable dS vacua from generalised fluxes, JHEP 08 (2013) 054 [arXiv:1301.7073] [INSPIRE].
- [60] R. Blumenhagen et al., The Flux-Scaling Scenario: De Sitter Uplift and Axion Inflation, Fortsch. Phys. 64 (2016) 536 [arXiv:1510.01522] [INSPIRE].
- [61] J. Blaback, U.H. Danielsson, G. Dibitetto and S.C. Vargas, Universal dS vacua in STU-models, JHEP 10 (2015) 069 [arXiv:1505.04283] [INSPIRE].

- [62] F. Marchesano and J. Quirant, A Landscape of AdS Flux Vacua, JHEP 12 (2019) 110 [arXiv:1908.11386] [INSPIRE].
- [63] F. Marchesano, D. Prieto and M. Wiesner, F-theory flux vacua at large complex structure, JHEP 08 (2021) 077 [arXiv:2105.09326] [INSPIRE].
- [64] P. Shukla, On stable type IIA de-Sitter vacua with geometric flux, Eur. Phys. J. C 83 (2023) 196 [arXiv:2202.12840] [INSPIRE].
- [65] C. Damian and O. Loaiza-Brito, Galois groups of uplifted de Sitter vacua, arXiv: 2307.08468 [INSPIRE].
- [66] X. Gao and P. Shukla, Dimensional oxidation and modular completion of non-geometric type IIB action, JHEP 05 (2015) 018 [arXiv:1501.07248] [INSPIRE].
- [67] P. Shukla, Implementing odd-axions in dimensional oxidation of 4D non-geometric type IIB scalar potential, Nucl. Phys. B 902 (2016) 458 [arXiv:1507.01612] [INSPIRE].
- [68] G.K. Leontaris and P. Shukla, Taxonomy of scalar potential with U-dual fluxes, Phys. Rev. D 108 (2023) 126020 [arXiv:2308.15529] [INSPIRE].
- [69] T.W. Grimm, F. Ruehle and D. van de Heisteeg, Classifying Calabi-Yau Threefolds Using Infinite Distance Limits, Commun. Math. Phys. 382 (2021) 239 [arXiv:1910.02963] [INSPIRE].
- [70] T.W. Grimm, C. Li and I. Valenzuela, Asymptotic Flux Compactifications and the Swampland, JHEP 06 (2020) 009 [Erratum ibid. 01 (2021) 007] [arXiv:1910.09549] [INSPIRE].
- [71] J. Shelton, W. Taylor and B. Wecht, Generalized Flux Vacua, JHEP 02 (2007) 095 [hep-th/0607015] [INSPIRE].
- [72] A. Micu, E. Palti and G. Tasinato, Towards Minkowski Vacua in Type II String Compactifications, JHEP 03 (2007) 104 [hep-th/0701173] [INSPIRE].
- [73] S. Bielleman, L.E. Ibanez and I. Valenzuela, Minkowski 3-forms, Flux String Vacua, Axion Stability and Naturalness, JHEP 12 (2015) 119 [arXiv:1507.06793] [INSPIRE].
- [74] A. Herraez, L.E. Ibanez, F. Marchesano and G. Zoccarato, The Type IIA Flux Potential, 4-forms and Freed-Witten anomalies, JHEP 09 (2018) 018 [arXiv:1802.05771] [INSPIRE].
- [75] D. Escobar, F. Marchesano and W. Staessens, Type IIA Flux Vacua with Mobile D6-branes, JHEP 01 (2019) 096 [arXiv:1811.09282] [INSPIRE].
- [76] D. Escobar, F. Marchesano and W. Staessens, Type IIA flux vacua and α'-corrections, JHEP 06 (2019) 129 [arXiv:1812.08735] [INSPIRE].
- [77] R. Blumenhagen, M. Cvetic, P. Langacker and G. Shiu, Toward realistic intersecting D-brane models, Ann. Rev. Nucl. Part. Sci. 55 (2005) 71 [hep-th/0502005] [INSPIRE].
- [78] R. Blumenhagen, B. Kors, D. Lust and S. Stieberger, Four-dimensional String Compactifications with D-Branes, Orientifolds and Fluxes, Phys. Rept. 445 (2007) 1 [hep-th/0610327] [INSPIRE].
- [79] F. Marchesano, Progress in D-brane model building, Fortsch. Phys. 55 (2007) 491 [hep-th/0702094] [INSPIRE].
- [80] L.E. Ibanez and A.M. Uranga, *String theory and particle physics: An introduction to string phenomenology*, Cambridge University Press (2012) [INSPIRE].
- [81] T.W. Grimm and J. Louis, The effective action of type IIA Calabi-Yau orientifolds, Nucl. Phys. B 718 (2005) 153 [hep-th/0412277] [INSPIRE].
- [82] T.W. Grimm and D. Vieira Lopes, The N = 1 effective actions of D-branes in Type IIA and IIB orientifolds, Nucl. Phys. B 855 (2012) 639 [arXiv:1104.2328] [INSPIRE].

- [83] M. Kerstan and T. Weigand, The effective action of D6-branes in N = 1 type IIA orientifolds, JHEP 06 (2011) 105 [arXiv:1104.2329] [INSPIRE].
- [84] F. Carta, F. Marchesano, W. Staessens and G. Zoccarato, Open string multi-branched and Kähler potentials, JHEP 09 (2016) 062 [arXiv:1606.00508] [INSPIRE].
- [85] D. Junghans, O-Plane Backreaction and Scale Separation in Type IIA Flux Vacua, Fortsch. Phys.
 68 (2020) 2000040 [arXiv:2003.06274] [INSPIRE].
- [86] G. Buratti, J. Calderon, A. Mininno and A.M. Uranga, Discrete Symmetries, Weak Coupling Conjecture and Scale Separation in AdS Vacua, JHEP 06 (2020) 083 [arXiv:2003.09740] [INSPIRE].
- [87] F. Marchesano, E. Palti, J. Quirant and A. Tomasiello, On supersymmetric AdS₄ orientifold vacua, JHEP 08 (2020) 087 [arXiv:2003.13578] [INSPIRE].
- [88] A. Font, A. Herráez and L.E. Ibáñez, On scale separation in type II AdS flux vacua, JHEP 03 (2020) 013 [arXiv:1912.03317] [INSPIRE].
- [89] E. Plauschinn, Moduli Stabilization with Non-Geometric Fluxes Comments on Tadpole Contributions and de-Sitter Vacua, Fortsch. Phys. 69 (2021) 2100003 [arXiv:2011.08227] [INSPIRE].
- [90] M. Gomez-Reino and C.A. Scrucca, Locally stable non-supersymmetric Minkowski vacua in supergravity, JHEP 05 (2006) 015 [hep-th/0602246] [INSPIRE].
- U.H. Danielsson et al., De Sitter hunting in a classical landscape, Fortsch. Phys. 59 (2011) 897
 [arXiv:1103.4858] [INSPIRE].
- [92] D. Andriot, L. Horer and P. Marconnet, Charting the landscape of (anti-) de Sitter and Minkowski solutions of 10d supergravities, JHEP 06 (2022) 131 [arXiv:2201.04152] [INSPIRE].
- [93] D. Andriot, L. Horer and P. Marconnet, Exploring the landscape of (anti-) de Sitter and Minkowski solutions: group manifolds, stability and scale separation, JHEP 08 (2022) 109 [Erratum ibid. 09 (2022) 184] [arXiv:2204.05327] [INSPIRE].
- [94] D. Andriot, P. Marconnet, M. Rajaguru and T. Wrase, Automated consistent truncations and stability of flux compactifications, JHEP 12 (2022) 026 [Addendum ibid. 04 (2023) 044]
 [arXiv:2209.08015] [INSPIRE].
- [95] R. Carrasco, T. Coudarchet, F. Marchesano and D. Prieto, New families of scale separated vacua, JHEP 11 (2023) 094 [arXiv:2309.00043] [INSPIRE].
- [96] A. Banlaki, A. Chowdhury, C. Roupec and T. Wrase, Scaling limits of dS vacua and the swampland, JHEP 03 (2019) 065 [arXiv:1811.07880] [INSPIRE].
- [97] D. Junghans, Weakly Coupled de Sitter Vacua with Fluxes and the Swampland, JHEP 03 (2019) 150 [arXiv:1811.06990] [INSPIRE].